
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability, notify the City
Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA 28 CFR/36).

(Public Comment during Public Hearing or Agenda item comment)

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for non-agenda items to (3)
minutes.  Any person desiring to address the Committee during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk prior to the Committee meeting
between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or any time between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the Office of the City Clerk. They shall
provide their name and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to
speak only one time.  If written materials are to be submitted, twelve (12) copies should be made available, and may not be returned.

 
AGENDA

FINANCE COMMITTEE
JULY 14, 2025

 
 

Official action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The public body may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, strike,
or continue any agenda item.
 
When more information is needed to act on an item, the public body may refer the matter to Staff or back to Committee or the recommending body.
 
Under certain circumstances, items are deferred to a specific date or stricken from the agenda entirely.

REGULAR SESSION - 5:30 P.M., 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, MUNICIPAL
BUILDING, 229 W. OKMULGEE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA
 

INVOCATION - DEPUTY MAYOR DERRICK A. REED
 
FLAG SALUTES - DEPUTY MAYOR DERRICK A. REED

 

           
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of June 9, 2025, or take other necessary

action.
 
2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 31, 2025 through July 4, 2025, or

take other necessary action.
 
3. Consider approval of Resolution No. 3035 declaring items of personal property presently in

the possession of the City of Muskogee, to be surplus to the needs of the City of Muskogee,
and authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to offer for sale or dispose of the same, all
as per attached list, or take other necessary action. (Kendal Francis)

 
4. Consider approval to authorize the City Manager to execute an Engagement Letter with



4. Consider approval to authorize the City Manager to execute an Engagement Letter with
Crawford and Associates, Certified Public Accountants, to perform audit preparation and
produce financial statements for the FY2025 audit, or take other necessary action. (Dennis
Read)

 
5. Consider approval of final payment to RJR Enterprises, Inc., in the amount of $26,377.88,

for the Langston Park Splash Pad, Project No. 2023029, or take other necessary action.
(Mark Wilkerson)

 
6. Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $58,515.41, from Ellsworth

Pavement Maintenance (EPM), for the Hatbox VA Parking Lot Improvements, Project No.
2025009, or take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson)

 
7. Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $1,600,000.00, from Cook

Consulting, LLC, for the ARPA Water Treatment Plant Improvements, Project No.
2025010, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

 
8. Consider approval of the purchase of one (1) Kubota MX5400HST 4WD Tractor and

accessories from Kubota/Stewart Martin, in the total amount of $52,764.58, per State
Contract SW0196NE, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

 
9. Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $675,881.00, from Beytco,

Inc., for the Keetowah Lift Station No.16, Project No. 2025003, or take other necessary
action. (Mike Stewart)

 
10. Consider approval of Sourcewell pricing from Stewart Martin Equipment in the amount of

$127,388.64, for the purchase of one (1) Kubota KX057-5R3AP Mini-Excavator with
attachments, for use in the Street Division in Public Works, or take other necessary action.
(Mike Stewart)

 
11. Consider approval of Sourcewell pricing from River City Hydraulics, of Sherwood,

Arkansas, for the purchase of two (2) 2026 PowerTrak 1000 Rear Loaders, in the amount of
$221,662.21 each, for a total of $443,324.42, for use in the Solid Waste Division, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

 

ADJOURN



   
Finance Committee 1.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Initiator: Jennifer Sharp, Admin II
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of June 9, 2025, or take other necessary action.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
06092025 finmin 



MINUTES

OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

MET IN REGULAR SESSION
IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL 

JUNE 9, 2025

The Finance Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular Session at 5:30 p.m. on
June 9, 2025, in Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 229 W. Okmulgee Ave., Muskogee,
Oklahoma.

Present:  Mayor Patrick Cale; Chair Derrick Reed; Vice Chair Jaime Stout; Committee Member
Tracy Hoos; Committee Member Shirley Hilton-Flanary; Committee Member Melody
Cranford; Committee Member Dan Hall; Committee Member Tom Martindale; Committee
Member Mike Brawley 

Staff
Present:

Kendal Francis, City Manager; Katrina Bodenhamer, City Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City
Clerk; Mike Stewart, Public Works Director; Avery Rigney, Assistant Public Works
Director; Sarah Winkle, Acting City Planner; Johnny Teehee, Police Chief; Tera Shows,
Economic Development Manager; Justin O'Neal, Asst. Parks Director for Expo and Civic
Center; Dennis Read, City Treasurer; Jeff Reeves, Project Manager 

1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of May 12, 2025, or take other
necessary action.

Motion was made by Committee Member Tracy Hoos, seconded by Committee
Member Dan Hall to approve Finance Committee minutes of May 12, 2025. 

AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 3, 2025 through May 30,
2025, or take other necessary action.

Motion was made by Vice Chair Jaime Stout, seconded by Committee Member
Shirley Hilton-Flanary to approve claims for all City departments May 3, 2025
through May 30, 2025. 

AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
1 of 5



  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
3. (No Action) Hold a Public Hearing to discuss the City of Muskogee Budget for

FY2025-2026, and take other necessary action. (Dennis Read)

**Note: A complete copy of the FY2025-2026 Budget can be found on the City of
Muskogee Website. 

Chair Derrick Reed opened the Public Hearing. 

City Treasurer Dennis Read presented the FY2025-2026 Budget with a PowerPoint
Presentation.

Chair Derrick Reed closed the Public Hearing. 

  

 
4. Consider approval to accept the recommended bids for Water Treatment Plant

Chemicals for water treatment as follows: 1) Chlorine at $1.258 per pound to Brenntag
Southwest; 2) Fluorosilicic Acid at $0.262 per pound to Pencco, Inc.; 3) Poly-phosphate
at $0.61 per pound to Hawkins, Inc.; 4) Aluminum/polymer liquid blend coagulant at
$0.4334 to Brenntag Southwest; 5) Sodium Chlorite solution at $0.655 per pound to
International Dioxide, Inc.; 6) Ferric Chloride at $0.2435 per pound to Brenntag
Southwest; and 7) Copper Sulfate at $0.64 per pound to Brenntag Southwest, or take
other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Public Works Director Mike Stewart stated there had been a change to bid 4 (four):
Aluminum/polymer liquid blend coagulant at $0.455 per pound to Water Tech Inc. per
staff recommendation.  Mr. Stewart explained these bids were approved by the
Purchasing Committee on 6/9/2025 with the change.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Shirley Hilton-Flanary, seconded by

Mayor Patrick Cale to accept the recommended bids as amended for Water
Treatment Plant Chemicals for water treatment as follows: 1) Chlorine at $1.258 per
pound to Brenntag Southwest; 2) Fluorosilicic Acid at $0.262 per pound to Pencco,
Inc.; 3) Poly-phosphate at $0.61 per pound to Hawkins, Inc.; 4) Aluminum/polymer
liquid blend coagulant at $0.455 per pound to Water Tech Inc.; 5) Sodium Chlorite
solution at $0.655 per pound to International Dioxide, Inc.; 6) Ferric Chloride at
$0.2435 per pound to Brenntag Southwest; and 7) Copper Sulfate at $0.64 per pound
to Brenntag Southwest. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

2 of 5



Carried - Unanimously 

 
5. Consider approval of the lowest and/or best bids for Road Materials from Glover &

Associates, Inc., Cooks Consulting, LLC, and APAC Central dba Arkhola, for fiscal
year 2025-2026, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Tracy Hoos, seconded by Committee

Member Tom Martindale to approve of the lowest and/or best bids for Road
Materials from Glover & Associates, Inc., Cooks Consulting, LLC, and APAC
Central dba Arkhola, for fiscal year 2025-2026. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike Brawley 

NAY:  Committee Member Dan Hall 
Carried 

 
6. Consider approval of the lowest and/or best bid from Muskogee Redi Mix for concrete

materials for City repair and maintenance projects, or take other necessary action. (Mike
Stewart)

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Shirley Hilton-Flanary, seconded by

Committee Member Mike Brawley to approve the lowest and/or best bid from
Muskogee Redi Mix for concrete materials for City repair and maintenance projects. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
7. Consider approval of a Master Sales and License Agreement with Routeware, Inc., in an

amount not to exceed $76,115.84, and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and
execute the same, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Assistant Public Works Director Avery Rigney stated this software has been
instrumental in streamlining operations, and Staff would like to upgrade to the Optimize
feature. Mr. Rigney stated it should improve efficiency.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Tracy Hoos, seconded by Committee

Member Tom Martindale to approve a Master Sales and License Agreement with
Routeware, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $76,115.84, and authorize the City
Manager to negotiate and execute the same. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
3 of 5



  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
8. Consider approval to authorize the City Manager to execute a renewal agreement with

Great Plains Consulting, LLC, to provide project construction inspection services on
various OWRB and Capital Improvement Projects as required by the loan agreement, or
take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

Public Works Director Mike Stewart stated the renewal went up to $13,670.00 per
month, which is paid for by grants from OWRB and Public Works funds. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Vice Chair Jaime Stout, seconded by Committee Member

Shirley Hilton-Flanary to approve to authorize the City Manager to execute a
renewal agreement with Great Plains Consulting, LLC, to provide project
construction inspection services on various OWRB and Capital Improvement
Projects as required by the loan agreement. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
9. Consider approval of final payment to Ascend Commercial Builders, in the amount of

$20,000.00, for Grandview Park, Project No. 2023010, or take other necessary action.
(Mark Wilkerson)

Project Manager Jeff Reeves stated this $1.5 million project came in $65,000.00 under
budget and meets and exceeds all requirements. Staff recommended approval. 

Committee Member Jaime Stout asked if the parking lot was already included in this
final payment.

Mr. Reeves stated he would have to defer to Mr. Mark Wilkerson, but he believed the
parking lot to be more extensive than originally planned. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Dan Hall, seconded by Vice Chair Jaime

Stout to approve of final payment to Ascend Commercial Builders, in the amount of
$20,000.00, for Grandview Park, Project No. 2023010. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,

4 of 5



  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
10. Consider approval to purchase one (1) New Caterpillar Model 260 C3H2 Skid Steer

Loader/Compact Track Loader with all standard equipment, in the amount of
$74,031.00, for the Hatbox Event Park, or take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson)

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Dan Hall, seconded by Committee

Member Shirley Hilton-Flanary to approve to purchase one (1) New Caterpillar
Model 260 C3H2 Skid Steer Loader/Compact Track Loader with all standard
equipment, in the amount of $74,031.00, for the Hatbox Event Park. 

  AYE:  Mayor Patrick Cale, Chair Derrick Reed, Vice Chair Jaime Stout,
Committee Member Tracy Hoos, Committee Member Shirley
Hilton-Flanary, Committee Member Melody Cranford, Committee Member
Dan Hall, Committee Member Tom Martindale, Committee Member Mike
Brawley 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

 
CHAIR DERRICK A. REED
FINANCE COMMITTEE
finmin
TT

5 of 5



   
Finance Committee 2.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For:  Dennis Read, Finance 
Initiator: Benita Hotema, Assistant Financial Analyst
Department: Finance
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 31, 2025 through July 4, 2025, or take other
necessary action.

BACKGROUND:
Claims for all City departments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve claims May 31, 2025 through July 4, 2025.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Purchasing Claims 7/14/2025 



CHECK NO. VENDOR AMOUNT DESCRIPTION
250699 ROBIN MCCAIG 260.60          travel/education
250700 SHELLY PATTERSON 94.00             travel/education
250701 OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE AUTHORITY (O 18.93             tolls
250702 OTA/PIKE PASS 160.00          tolls
250703 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 157,364.97  insurance
250704 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 52,223.57     insurance
250705 B&H PROPERTIES & LAND, LLC 33.32             utility refund
250706 BIRD, DOUGLAS B 30.11             utility refund
250707 CALAVAN, NORMA RUTH 58.60             utility refund
250708 DISMANG, CHAD COLEMAN 26.33             utility refund
250709 ELLER, JAMES R 100.00          utility refund
250710 GIOFFREDI, RICHARD & DELORES 1.98               utility refund
250711 GRAND PROPERTIES & INVS LLC 16.66             utility refund
250712 HUNDLEY, MICHAEL C 11.06             utility refund
250713 JACKSON, RICKIE REED 31.13             utility refund
250714 JIMENEZ MARTINEZ, GREGORIO 40.67             utility refund
250715 LANTROOP, ROY D 21.76             utility refund
250717 MENDOZA, MARILOU 39.95             utility refund
250718 O'NEAL, WILLIAM D JR 11.49             utility refund
250719 READY MORTGAGE 37.05             utility refund
250720 SHINN, PHILLIP 21.00             utility refund
250721 YOUNG, FRANK J 55.76             utility refund
250722 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 1,560.00       water testing/lab
250723 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 7,948.07       temp employees
250724 APAC CENTRAL INC 1,058.40       contract services
250725 BEN E. KEITH 4,463.45       concessions
250726 VIDA BERRY 458.33          sf instructor
250727 LOGAN BETHEL 270.00          umpire
250728 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 175.00          lawncare contractor
250729 BRENNTAG SOUTHWEST INC 35,880.70     chemical contractor
250730 BROCK SUPPLY CO 70.49             fleet misc
250731 BURTON POOLS AND SPAS, LLC 14,183.28     Parks pool chemicals
250732 CAGLE'S FLOWERS & GIFTS 65.00             misc
250733 CARE AROUND THE CLOCK INC 7,223.08       medical services
250734 CHRIS CUMMINGS 160.72          travel/education
250735 CINCINNATI RADIATOR SERVICE IN 100.00          fleet misc
250736 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 1,892.02       uniforms/janitorial
250737 CLEET 6,156.41       monthly cleet
250738 CONNECT DME, LLC 638.95          medical supplies
250739 ZANE CORY 315.00          umpire
250740 COWAN GROUP ENGINEERING LLC 29,060.00     projects contractor
250741 CRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 860.00          audit services
250742 CREATIVE APPAREL & MORE 60.00             misc
250743 CROWDER AUTO GLASS 320.00          misc
250744 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 81.90             fleet misc
250745 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 62.00             misc dues/licenses
250746 KENYONNE DERRICK 420.00          teen center fitness
250747 DANIELLE DEZSO-JONES 190.00          teen center art class
250748 DIRECTV LLC 117.23          airport communications

CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS



250749 DOBSON FIBER 8,238.43       communications
250750 MERCURY PRESS PLUS 119.19          misc
250751 DUB ROSS COMPANY 17,043.12     Publicworks pipe/couplers
250752 JERRY EATON SCOTT 420.00          teen center tutoring
250755 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 13,333.87     temp employees
250756 FASTENAL COMPANY 1,041.85       misc supplies
250757 AVERY LAWN CARE 710.00          lawncare contractor
250758 FITNESS ON DEMAND LLC 229.00          swim&fit misc
250759 FROST OIL CO., LLC 399.45          fuel
250760 GRAINGER 426.83          parts/supplies/janitorial
250761 GREAT PLAINS CONSULTING 4,320.00       projects contractor
250762 HARRISON TIRE & SUPPLY 630.00          fleet misc
250763 SHIRLEY HILTON-FLANARY 75.00             allowance
250764 HOLT TRUCK CENTERS OF OKLAHOMA 77.19             fleet misc
250765 HOMELAND STORES INC 67.56             misc
250766 TRACY ALAN HOOS II 75.00             allowance
250767 J & R EQUIPMENT 3,588.07       Publicworks misc
250768 LORI JEFFERSON 760.00          teen center tutoring
250769 JOHNSON'S SERVICE COMPANY 1,455.25       misc
250770 TRAINING KAMP, LLC 270.00          teen center fitness
250771 KEVIN KIMBLE 500.00          event performer
250772 KYLE EDWARDS BUICK GMC INC 200.06          fleet
250773 DEWEY LAWSON WAYNE 270.00          umpire
250774 THE LIFEGUARD STORE 112.00          Parks misc
250775 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 365.64          misc supplies/parts
250776 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #170700 60.80             misc
250777 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #237600 532.40          misc
250778 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #515580 24.00             misc
250779 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #9280878 130.00          misc
250780 LOWES 2,251.26       misc supplies/parts
250781 MARIO'S QUALITY OVERHEAD DOORS 300.00          door repairs
250782 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 70.21             misc parts
250783 RODNEY L. MATHEWS 300.00          umpire
250784 MMSGS 288.59          Fire msic
250785 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 50.00             tow services
250786 DUAN MORRIS 350.00          movie night contractor
250787 MUNICIPALH2O.COM 500.00          misc
250788 KELLY MURRY 150.00          airport janitorial services
250789 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 198.00          filing fees
250790 MUSKOGEE COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHOR 26,543.02     City transportation services
250791 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 35.64             misc
250792 MUSKOGEE REDI-MIX LLC 880.00          concrete contractor
250793 MUSKOGEE TOURISM AUTHORITY 122,195.54  Hotel/Motel submission
250794 NEWTON, BRYCE DBA 1,155.00       portable septic services
250795 OFFICE DEPOT 141.84          office supplies
250796 OKLAHOMA CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRI 50,938.00     Parks sheep&hog pens
250797 OKLAHOMA EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS 1,033.44       fleet truck parts
250798 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 1,349.66       city utility
250799 OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE AUTHORITY (O 45.60             tolls
250800 OLSSON ASSOCIATES 10,600.00     projects engineer service
250801 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 191.16          misc



250802 OPTIMUM BUSINESS 34.00             misc
250803 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 4,603.90       fleet parts
250804 OSBI 6,141.78       monthly fees
250805 OSBI 5,891.37       monthly fees
250806 P & K EQUIPMENT 5,389.74       fleet parts
250807 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 358.80          misc
250808 PAYNE MEDIA GROUP LLC 1,050.00       misc
250809 PITNEY BOWES INC 2,401.87       postage
250810 ADAM M. POTTS DBA LAWNSTARS 700.00          lawncare contractor
250811 POWER PLAY LLC 1,085.90       Robison Park splashpad equipmet
250812 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP 206.59          fleet misc/parts
250813 DERRICK REED 184.99          allowance
250814 ROYAL SIGN AND GRAPHIC INC 937.50          misc
250815 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 908.26          janitorial/misc supplies
250816 JENNIFER SARGENT 240.00          teen center tutoring
250817 SBA 2012 TC ASSETS 607.75          misc
250818 SHANE COLE PHILLIPS 1,000.00       event performer
250819 ELI SINGLETON 315.00          umpire
250820 SMITH FARM & GARDEN (TULSA) 126.66          Parks misc
250821 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 19,959.69     insurance
250822 STIGLER MILLING COMPANY, LLC 131.00          misc
250823 SUDDENLINK 660.00          misc
250824 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 226.33          towels/mats services
250825 T-MOBILE USA INC. 3,316.35       City mobile phones/data
250826 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 6,250.77       bill notices
250827 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 572.84          elevator service
250828 TLS GROUP, INC 1,852.50       signal maintenance
250829 TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE 165.00          misc
250830 UNIFIRST FIRST AID CORP 69.39             fleet misc
250831 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 976.19          uniforms
250832 UTILITY SUPPLY CO 4,574.15       Publicworks piping supplies
250833 UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES IN 3,210.00       meter software
250834 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 85.45             landfill
250835 CINDY WAYMAN 2,088.00       sf instructor
250836 XEROX CORPORATION 3,840.00       office printers contract
250837 YORK & MAIN EQUITY GROUP INC 11,500.00     sewer repair
250838 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 65,966.70     insurance
250839 PROUD SOULS ENTERTAINMENT LLC 15,000.00     event performer
250840 UNDERGROUND SOUND, LLC 15,000.00     event performer
250849 BANK OF AMERICA 55,383.00     employee purchasing cards
250857 BANK OF AMERICA 45,706.84     employee purchasing cards
250864 BANK OF AMERICA 37,639.72     employee purchasing cards
250874 BANK OF AMERICA 51,266.92     employee purchasing cards
250875 ADAMS, MESA B 40.80             utility refund
250876 BRANDT, BETH A 17.38             utility refund
250877 CALDERWOOD, CARRIE A 16.66             utility refund
250878 CARRIER, SUMMER S 13.17             utility refund
250879 CLARK, A B 10.00             utility refund
250880 COWLAND PROPERTIES, LLC 16.66             utility refund
250881 CROSBY, CINDY 16.79             utility refund
250882 DUROSSETTE, DYLAN 0.20               utility refund



250883 GUNN, ROBERT 11.63             utility refund
250884 HUDSON HOMES MANAGEMENT, LLC 6.18               utility refund
250885 LIN, JIE 6.66               utility refund
250886 MAXWELL, ERIC JUSTIN 29.39             utility refund
250887 MCOIL SERVICE CO INC 8.24               utility refund
250888 MID CONTINENT CONSTRUCTION 20.56             utility refund
250889 MID CONTINENT CONSTRUCTION 100.00          utility refund
250890 MUSKOGEE APARTMENTS 4 LLC 38.36             utility refund
250891 MUSKOGEE APARTMENTS 4 LLC 28.36             utility refund
250892 PECH OLAN, ASUNCION 26.04             utility refund
250893 PRICE, JOAN J 22.30             utility refund
250894 SCHORNICK, RONALD K 33.00             utility refund
250895 STANER, MELANIE A 6.31               utility refund
250896 SULLIVAN PROPERTIES 90.00             utility refund
250897 TOTAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 4.91               utility refund
250898 WILDCAT, ANTHONY L JR. 24.01             utility refund
250899 WILLIAMS, AMIE DAWN 28.71             utility refund
250900 XIONG, TONY 100.00          utility refund
250901 1776 FEST 2,357.16       utility refund
250902 3 FORKS PROPERTIES 90.00             utility refund
250903 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF OKLAHOMA 884.90          insurance
250904 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF OKLAHOMA 25,582.82     insurance
250905 THE ZERO CARD, INC. 6,865.88       insurance
250906 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 6,095.66       temp employees
250907 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 64771111001 715.28          fleet misc
250908 AIRGAS USA LLC 167.69          misc
250909 ALLSTATE TERMITE&PEST SOLUTION 2,439.00       pest service contractor
250910 AMERICAN RED CROSS-TRAINING SE 235.00          misc
250911 AT&T #918 682-2825 211 0 269.95          misc services
250912 BANNER FIRE EQUIPMENT INC 256.59          misc
250913 BCS INSURANCE COMPANY 72,029.23     insurance
250914 BEN E. KEITH 2,703.54       concessions
250915 BG PRODUCTS INC 940.80          fleet misc
250916 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 16,950.00     lawncare contractor
250917 CARE AROUND THE CLOCK INC 23,604.92     medical services
250918 CASCO INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED 595.88          misc
250919 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 1,624.70       uniforms/janitorial
250920 CITY OF MUSKOGEE FOUNDATION 485,970.00  payback loan for TIF land purchase
250921 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 1,050.00       lawncare contractor
250922 COMMUNITYSCALE LLC 6,759.00       Comprehensive Housing Study
250923 CONNECT DME, LLC 350.00          medical supplies
250924 COOK CONSULTING LLC 730,627.69  projects contractor
250925 CREATIVE APPAREL & MORE 1,391.16       misc
250926 BRAYLON DEDMON 200.00          AllAboard performer
250927 DEBRA DELZEIT 50.00             sf instructor
250928 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 1,472.00       misc dues/licenses
250929 DIPPIN' DOTS INC 4,616.76       WaterPark concessions
250930 EAST CENTRAL ELECTRIC 3,057.76       city utility
250931 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 5,373.92       temp employees
250932 AVERY LAWN CARE 3,548.00       lawncare contractor
250933 FIVE STAR DEMOLITION 2,623.95       demo contractor



250934 FLEETPRIDE INC 139.13          misc
250935 FROST OIL CO., LLC 17,609.94     fuel
250936 FUSESPORT, INC 75.00             misc
250937 KARLA D GIBSON 50.00             sf instructor
250938 LORNE K. GOOD DBA GOOD CONCRET 4,725.00       concrete pouring/lay services
250939 GRAINGER 846.24          parts/supplies/janitorial
250940 GREEN COUNTRY TESTING 930.00          misc
250941 HACH COMPANY 893.70          misc
250942 HAPPY PLAYGROUNDS 6,989.00       Gulick Park replacement swing
250943 HARCROS CHEMICALS INC 1,664.20       Parks lawn chemicals
250944 HARNESS ROOFING, INC 4,997.00       contract services
250945 USA BLUEBOOK 620.74          PW lab equipment
250946 HOLLOWAY UPDIKE AND BELLEN INC 3,800.00       project contractor
250947 I 40 RACE SERVICE LLC 428.50          misc
250948 JAMES ELLIOTT 50.00             travel/education
250949 STEVEN JOHNS II W 1,600.00       AllAboard sound&listening
250950 KIMBALL MIDWEST 318.07          misc
250951 KRISTAL MCLAIN 1,100.00       employee misc
250952 KTFX FM RADIO STATION 200.00          radio ad
250953 LAKE REGION ELECTRIC COOPERATI 7,102.00       city utility
250954 KAREN LAUDERDALE 50.00             sf instructor
250955 LAZY J PROPERTIES, ANGELA YOUN 50.00             sf instructor
250956 LEXISNEXIS 241.00          misc
250957 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 341.69          misc supplies/parts
250958 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #170650 806.40          misc
250959 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #208410 16.56             misc
250960 LOWES 1,361.36       misc supplies/parts
250961 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 306.84          misc parts
250962 MCINTOSH CORP 1,184.65       plumbing contractor
250963 MMSGS 143.66          Fire msic
250964 KELLY MURRY 157.50          airport janitorial services
250965 MUSKOGEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 2,000.00       Chamber banquet tablex2
250966 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 18.00             filing fees
250967 MUSKOGEE COUNTY COMM ACT FOUND 9,914.00       Smith Ferry ROW parcel 34 for City project
250968 MUSKOGEE DAILY PHOENIX 802.00          ad/subscriptions
250969 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 203.45          misc
250970 MUSKOGEE REDI-MIX LLC 3,535.00       concrete contractor
250971 NAFECO INC 2,371.70       Fire bunker gear
250972 NICK FORD 126.00          travel/education
250973 NOAH EVANS 126.00          travel/education
250974 OFFICE CONNECTIONS LLC 1,219.96       office supplies
250975 OFFICE DEPOT 881.17          office supplies
250976 OKIE SAFETY CONSULTING, LLC 2,250.00       plan review services
250977 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 20.00             dues
250978 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 1,206.85       city utility
250979 OKLAHOMA STATE DEPT OF HEALTH 375.00          misc
250980 OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE AUTHORITY (O 7.60               tolls
250981 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 1,286.79       fleet parts
250982 PALMER CAP-CHUR & EQUIPMENT IN 279.94          misc
250983 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 270.15          misc
250984 POWER PLAY LLC 35,650.00     Honor Heights splashpad equipment



250985 PREMIER USA INC. 1,758.82       temp employees
250986 PROSEGUR EAS USA, LLC 4,429.48       City Hall security
250987 BFI WASTE SERVICES, LLC 305.29          misc
250988 RETAIL ATTRACTIONS LLC 4,125.00       economic development consultant
250989 RHINOX GROUPS, INC 3,580.00       grading bucket for Publicworks
250990 SHERRY S. RICE 25.00             sf instructor
250991 RICK EWING 452.95          travel/education
250992 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF OKLAHOMA 197.30          fleet misc
250993 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 1,758.22       janitorial/misc supplies
250994 SERVANT FINANCIAL LLC 5,775.00       utility easement for sewer line
250995 JAMES SOUTHCOTT A 75.00             misc
250996 SOUTHERN TIRE MART, LLC 1,147.50       fleet
250997 STAUB INVESTMENTS INC. DBA GAL 230.00          misc
250998 STEWART MARTIN EQUIPMENT 204.54          misc parts
250999 TAHLEQUAH DAILY PRESS 874.25          misc
251000 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 444.18          bill notices
251001 TETRA TECH INC 15,464.00     Sanitary Sewer evaluation
251002 THE PC LANDING ZONE, INC 8,040.00       Parks IT materials
251003 TLS GROUP, INC 16,361.37     signal maintenance
251004 TRENT GATES 647.75          misc
251005 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 818.59          uniforms
251006 UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 1,332.23       misc
251007 VISION SERVICE PLAN INSURANCE 15,631.04     insurance
251008 W & W INVESTMENTS-AKERS COLLIS 2,794.39       fleet misc
251009 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 2,955.44       landfill
251010 CINDY WAYMAN 175.00          sf instructor
251011 WELDON PARTS - MUSKOGEE 489.97          misc
251012 RUTLEDGE WHITTINGTON CHARLES 1,200.00       AllAboard performer
251013 LAURA WICKIZER 75.00             sf instructor
251014 YORK & MAIN EQUITY GROUP INC 13,250.00     sewer repair
251015 ZOLL MEDICAL CORP 50.74             misc
251016 FIVE STAR DEMOLITION 20,000.00     demo contractor
251017 HUGHES LUMBER CO 37.43             misc supplies
251025 BANK OF AMERICA 44,599.59     employee purchasing cards
251026 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 50,763.30     insurance
251027 BRANDT, BETH 23.89             utility refund
251028 BUFORD, ALICIA D 16.66             utility refund
251029 CHATMAN, LOUIS EDWARD 42.12             utility refund
251030 GRIFFITH, JESSE S 88.93             utility refund
251031 LAMONS, LINDSEY A 22.57             utility refund
251032 MICHELE M WILLIAMS 60.00             utility refund
251033 MUSKOGEE APARTMENTS 4 LLC 28.36             utility refund
251034 RASMUSSEN, ZANE & SIDNEE 30.11             utility refund
251035 AC-OWEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 180,947.02  projects contractor
251036 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 2,595.00       water testing/lab
251037 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 6,244.59       temp employees
251038 AIRGAS USA LLC 227.12          misc
251039 APAC CENTRAL INC 3,279.16       contract services
251040 ASCEND COMMERCIAL BUILDERS LLC 20,000.00     projects contractor
251041 B & R ELECTRIC SERVICE INC 300.00          electrical contractor
251042 BEN E. KEITH 753.40          concessions



251043 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 870.00          lawncare contractor
251044 BRENNTAG SOUTHWEST INC 13,980.00     chemical contractor
251045 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC 27.84             electrical supplies/service
251046 CANINE DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC. 140.00          misc
251047 CAPITAL ONE, N.A. 160.63          misc
251048 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 278.56          misc
251049 CERTIFIED LABORATORIES 2,803.95       misc
251050 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 1,588.87       uniforms/janitorial
251051 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 700.00          lawncare contractor
251052 COWAN GROUP ENGINEERING LLC 175.00          projects contractor
251053 CREATIVE APPAREL & MORE 1,590.52       misc
251054 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 368.00          misc dues/licenses
251055 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 6,227.72       temp employees
251056 FAIRFIELD INN & SUITES - MUSKO 2,280.00       Civic Center event performer stay
251057 FASTENAL COMPANY 689.16          misc supplies
251058 FEDEX 83.86             mailing/postage
251059 AVERY LAWN CARE 972.00          lawncare contractor
251060 GRAINGER 325.50          parts/supplies/janitorial
251061 TYLER GRAY M 950.00          esports-Discord service build
251062 GREEN COUNTRY BEHAVIORAL HEALT 52.73             clinical sessions
251063 GUARD TRONIC INC 125.00          security services
251064 HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. 2,415.00       Comprehensive Plan update
251065 HAPPY PLAYGROUNDS 6,989.00       Hatbox replacement swing
251066 HARCROS CHEMICALS INC 2,157.89       Parks lawn chemicals
251067 HARGROVE, MISTY D 200.00          tennis workshop instructor
251068 HARNESS ROOFING, INC 3,007.25       contract services
251069 USA BLUEBOOK 211.79          PW lab equipment
251070 HUDIBURG FORD LLC 45,455.00     Community service van
251071 I 40 RACE SERVICE LLC 380.00          misc
251072 INCOR 2,340.00       contract services
251073 GAS AND SUPPLY 44.20             misc
251074 INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CTR OF 212.80          misc
251075 J & M ROOTER 1,000.00       misc services
251076 JARED CAPTIAL, LLC 3,200.00       solar lease
251077 JEFF LEE 248.00          travel/education
251078 JEREMY ROSS MC PLLC 4,000.00       drug/alcohol testing
251079 JOE COOPER FORD OF YUKON LLC 49,103.00     Parks crew truck
251080 JONAS FITNESS, INC 822.64          misc
251081 KERI SPENCER 196.84          travel/education
251082 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 221.81          misc supplies/parts
251083 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #111902 480.00          misc
251084 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #208400 1,581.00       misc
251085 LOWES 5,785.00       misc supplies/parts
251086 MARTIN LUTHER KING TRUST AUTHO 36,250.00     payment 4of4 MLK support
251087 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 13,457.80     Parks lawn equipment parts
251088 MATLOCK SECURITY SERVICES 90.00             misc services
251089 MAZZIO'S LLC 140.85          misc
251090 MICHAEL CRAWFORD 154.00          travel/education
251091 MMSGS 46.82             Fire msic
251092 JACOB MOORE R 500.00          event photographer/videographer
251093 KELLY MURRY 127.50          airport janitorial services



251094 MUSKOGEE CITIZENS POLICE ACADE 750.00          event security
251095 MUSKOGEE CITY COUNTY 911 TRUST 45,640.93     PD/FD dispatch fees
251096 MUSKOGEE CITY-COUNTY PORT AUTH 223.57          misc
251097 MUSKOGEE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 450.00          communications
251098 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 60.00             filing fees
251099 MUSKOGEE COUNTY OSU EXTENSION 141.93          misc
251100 MUSKOGEE DAILY PHOENIX 1,756.65       ad/subscriptions
251101 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 270.84          misc
251102 MUSKOGEE MEDICAL CENTER AUTHOR 27,360.97     note/interest
251103 MUSKOGEE REDI-MIX LLC 2,792.50       concrete contractor
251104 OFFICE DEPOT 51.94             office supplies
251105 OKLAHOMA DEPT OF LABOR 360.00          misc
251106 OKLAHOMA DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 800.00          misc
251107 OKLAHOMA UNIFORM BUILDING CODE 320.00          misc
251108 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 492.51          misc
251109 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 55.98             fleet parts
251110 ORPS 90.00             Parks dues
251111 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 462.96          misc
251112 PONTEM SOFTWARE 675.00          misc
251113 PRECISION DELTA CORP 30,359.00     Police ammo
251114 PREMIER USA INC. 1,793.79       temp employees
251115 PVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 11,150.40     chemical contractor
251116 NICHOLAS ROMINE 600.00          mowing contractor
251117 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 1,817.03       janitorial/misc supplies
251118 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY 289.75          misc
251119 SLIGAR MECHANICAL, LLC 53,600.00     final pay-Civic Center HVAC remodel
251120 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 653.20          towels/mats services
251121 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 5,235.51       bill notices
251122 THERMOBIND INC 294.00          misc
251123 TWIN CITIES READY MIX INC 1,550.00       Publicworks concrete
251124 T2M SALES, LLC 6,275.00       lawn chemicals
251125 U S POSTAL SERVICE 436.00          postage
251126 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 764.44          uniforms
251127 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA) 2,247.10       misc rental equipment
251128 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 20,437.77     landfill
251129 WATER TECH, INC. 21,060.00     chemical contractor
251130 LAWNBUSTERS LAWN AND LANDSCAPI 13,000.00     lawncare contractor
251131 XEROX BUSINESS SOLUTIONS SOUTH 111.54          misc
251132 YORK & MAIN EQUITY GROUP INC 28,450.00     sewer repair
251133 THE ZERO CARD, INC. 4,302.67       insurance
251134 THE ZERO CARD, INC. 7,454.51       insurance
251135 BLANCHARD, GLENDALE R 23.73             utility refund
251136 CHECOTAH HOLDINGS, LLC 40.76             utility refund
251137 COX, JULIE S 31.99             utility refund
251138 FEDERATED PROP LLC 0.40               utility refund
251139 GONZALEZ, ROSA 16.66             utility refund
251140 HARDIN, DOULAS D 16.66             utility refund
251141 JAYNE, LILLIAN 10.12             utility refund
251142 ROMERO HERNANDEZ, CONCEPCION 62.25             utility refund
251143 SWICEGOOD, SALENA ROSE 100.00          utility refund
251144 WATSON, KURT EDWARD 27.51             utility refund



251145 WILKERSON-MIMS, CYNTHIA 202.54          utility refund
251146 A & J RENTAL AND SALES 2,575.00       misc
251147 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 1,090.00       water testing/lab
251148 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 2,110.10       temp employees
251149 AIRGAS USA LLC 53.96             misc
251150 AMERICAN RED CROSS-TRAINING SE 235.00          misc
251151 APAC CENTRAL INC 10,246.10     contract services
251152 APPLIED MEDIA CONCEPTS INC 4,930.00       event setup materials
251153 BANNER FIRE EQUIPMENT INC 719,682.00  Fire truck
251154 BRIAN BARNS MICHAEL 60.00             misc
251155 BEN E. KEITH 313.54          concessions
251156 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 575.00          lawncare contractor
251157 BRITE COMPUTERS 69,472.60     IT equipment for various locations
251158 BROCK SUPPLY CO 38.91             fleet misc
251159 CINCINNATI RADIATOR SERVICE IN 900.00          fleet misc
251160 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 1,222.99       uniforms/janitorial
251161 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 700.00          lawncare contractor
251162 COMMUNITY CARE EAP 520.70          misc
251163 CORE & MAIN LP 210.00          publicworks parts
251164 COX ENVIRONMENTAL 645.00          misc
251165 CROWDER AUTO GLASS 740.00          misc
251166 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 976.85          fleet misc
251167 DEALERS ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 69.45             misc
251168 DEBRA DELZEIT 125.00          sf instructor
251169 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 554.00          misc dues/licenses
251170 DLT SOLUTIONS LLC 664.69          misc
251171 DUB ROSS COMPANY 4,761.11       Publicworks pipe/couplers
251172 DUBOIS CHEMICALS INC 420.00          misc
251173 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 30,990.70     chemical contractor
251174 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 5,220.88       temp employees
251175 FASTENAL COMPANY 1,809.68       misc supplies
251176 AVERY LAWN CARE 710.00          lawncare contractor
251177 FIVE STAR DEMOLITION 25,575.77     demo contractor
251178 FIVE STAR OFFICE SUPPLY 800.90          office supplies
251179 FLEETPRIDE INC 103.46          misc
251180 FROST OIL CO., LLC 18,739.15     fuel
251181 GALLS INC 1,140.19       misc
251182 GH2 ARCHITECTS, LLC 2,700.00       projects contractor
251183 KARLA D GIBSON 75.00             sf instructor
251185 GORDON'S HEATING-AIR CONDITION 4,774.00       HVAC contractor services
251186 GRAINGER 273.10          parts/supplies/janitorial
251187 GREEN COUNTRY BEHAVIORAL HEALT 1,818.75       clinical sessions
251188 GUARD TRONIC INC 686.73          security services
251189 HACH COMPANY 277.47          misc
251190 HOGLE COMPANY 2.50               misc
251191 HONOR HEIGHTS VET CLINIC #6530 147.68          animal shelter misc
251192 HULL, JEFFREY S 123.99          misc
251193 I 40 RACE SERVICE LLC 85.00             misc
251194 IDENTIFIX 1,428.00       misc
251195 INNOVATIVE SOLUTION ADVISORS L 1,682.53       misc
251196 JEREMY ROSS MC PLLC 190.00          drug/alcohol testing



251197 JEFFREY JONES 150.00          misc
251198 KTFX FM RADIO STATION 2,000.00       radio ad
251199 KAREN LAUDERDALE 100.00          sf instructor
251200 LAZY J PROPERTIES, ANGELA YOUN 100.00          sf instructor
251201 LB TECHNOLOGY, INC. 5,175.20       GPS subscriptions
251202 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 6,705.30       online Police reporting
251203 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 93.32             misc supplies/parts
251204 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #515580 16.56             misc
251206 LOWES 4,071.39       misc supplies/parts
251207 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 4,191.38       PublicWorks lawn equipment parts
251208 MAVERICK MACHINERY 1,646.05       misc
251209 MEDIC BATTERIES 320.93          misc
251210 MES I ACQUISITION INC 3,176.00       misc
251211 MIKE BRAWLEY 254.93          travel/education
251212 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 410.00          tow services
251213 KELLY MURRY 120.00          airport janitorial services
251214 MUSKOGEE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 1,332.00       communications
251215 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 630.00          filing fees
251216 MUSKOGEE COUNTY SHERIFFS DEPAR 13,500.00     jail bill
251217 MUSKOGEE DAILY PHOENIX 874.96          ad/subscriptions
251218 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 1,115.70       misc
251219 MUSKOGEE SIGN AND BANNER 965.00          misc
251220 MUSKOGEE YOUTH SERVICES 2,462.72       community service program
251221 ODEY'S, INC 1,949.95       Hatbox field master part
251222 OFFICE CONNECTIONS LLC 1,818.20       office supplies
251223 OFFICE DEPOT 267.62          office supplies
251224 OKLAHOMA DEPT OF LABOR 50.00             misc
251225 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 20.00             dues
251226 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 2,025.15       city utility
251227 OLSSON ASSOCIATES 26,048.00     projects engineer service
251228 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 94.19             misc
251230 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 5,024.67       fleet parts
251231 OTA-PLATEPAY 2.22               tolls
251232 OTA/PIKE PASS 9.50               tolls
251233 P & K EQUIPMENT 328.96          fleet parts
251234 MACK PARKS 3,500.00       Symphony Park fireworks
251235 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 760.28          misc
251236 PIED PIPER SERVICES 75.00             misc
251237 PORTCITY BODYSHOP INC DBA SAFE 490.00          fleet misc
251238 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP 1,336.29       fleet misc/parts
251239 PVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 11,409.60     chemical contractor
251240 HAROLD QUANTIE 799.55          misc
251241 RA OUTDOORS, LLC DBA ASPIRA 14.00             misc
251242 RELIABLE DOOR SERVICES, LLC 990.51          misc services
251243 RETAIL ATTRACTIONS LLC 4,125.00       economic development consultant
251244 SHERRY S. RICE 100.00          sf instructor
251245 ROBERT FENELL 55.00             misc
251246 ROBIN MCCAIG 274.60          travel/education
251247 HENDERSON COFFEE 379.27          misc
251248 ROSSON WHEEL SERVICE 85.00             fleet misc
251249 ROYSE PRINTING CO 747.00          printing services



251250 RUSH TRUCK CENTERS OF OKLAHOMA 80.90             fleet misc
251251 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 3,421.49       janitorial/misc supplies
251252 SAFETY FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 115.00          misc
251253 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY 38.10             misc
251254 SPECIAL OPS UNIFORMS 25,300.00     uniforms
251255 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 154.63          towels/mats services
251256 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 2,739.98       bill notices
251257 TENDER TOUCH AUTO WASH INC 594.00          fleet misc
251258 TIGER NATURAL GAS INC 2,986.88       city utility
251259 TOMAHAWK STRATEGIES LLC 10,000.00     CIP education program
251260 TONTO CONSTRUCTION INC 11,604.00     bio-solids removal contractor
251261 TULSA ASPHALT LLC 2,571.40       contractor services
251262 TWIN CITIES READY MIX INC 5,214.00       Publicworks concrete
251263 ULINE INC 8,736.30       Civic Center equipment
251264 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 1,026.72       uniforms
251265 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AMERICA) 1,197.69       misc
251266 USA BLUEBOOK 837.28          public works misc
251267 UTILITY SUPPLY CO 387.90          Publicworks piping supplies
251268 W & W INVESTMENTS-AKERS COLLIS 846.46          fleet misc
251269 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 20,437.48     landfill
251270 CINDY WAYMAN 275.00          sf instructor
251271 WELDON PARTS - MUSKOGEE 346.90          misc
251272 WHEELER METALS 1,335.40       misc
251273 LAURA WICKIZER 125.00          sf instructor
251274 JOHN WILKERSON CLARENCE III 1,500.00       backflow grant
251275 XEROX CORPORATION 3,840.00       office printers contract
251276 YORK & MAIN EQUITY GROUP INC 17,381.00     sewer repair
251277 YORK STREET TIRE OF MUSKOGEE L 8,518.96       fleet misc
251278 LORNA K. GOOD DBA GOOD CONCRET 5,850.00       concrete pouring/lay services
251279 GARRETT, RICK 72.02             utility refund
251280 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 90,655.76     insurance
251281 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 109,927.59  insurance
251282 THE ZERO CARD, INC. 5,029.62       insurance
251283 BURNS, BLANE 11.57             utility refund
251284 CASE, LARRY TRUST 6.66               utility refund
251285 CLARKSON,  CHERIE 21.72             utility refund
251286 COPE PROPERTIES 2.76               utility refund
251287 CUEVAS, JAVIER M 100.00          utility refund
251288 CUSTOM ELITE PROPERTY 90.00             utility refund
251289 DOKE HOLDINGS, LLC 16.66             utility refund
251290 EDWARDS, LARRY R 100.00          utility refund
251291 FOUTCH, WILLIAM B 26.06             utility refund
251292 GREAT LIFE INVESTMENTS 18.83             utility refund
251293 GUEVARA, LUIS ATMANDO PEREZ 45.30             utility refund
251294 HAWKE, SUSAN 29.39             utility refund
251295 KAMAKEEAINA, KENNETH L 23.17             utility refund
251296 LUND, ARIEL NICOLE 34.16             utility refund
251297 MID CONTINENT CONSTRUCTION 0.81               utility refund
251298 MORTON, IVA D 11.50             utility refund
251299 MUSKOGEE COMMUNITY ACTION 24.99             utility refund
251300 MUSKOGEE COMMUNITY ACTION 90.00             utility refund



251301 PILLARS. GREGORY ALLEN 100.00          utility refund
251302 PURDOM, MITCHAEL R 1.94               utility refund
251303 SAINT JOSEPH CHURCH 31.99             utility refund
251304 SPURLOCK, DENNIS 58.32             utility refund
251305 WALTMANN, CARRIE 0.20               utility refund
251306 ZALMANZIG, NORMA M 59.09             utility refund
251307 A & J RENTAL AND SALES 892.00          misc
251308 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 4,335.00       water testing/lab
251309 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 9,651.37       temp employees
251310 ACTION IMPRINTS 420.80          printing services
251311 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 64771111001 290.14          fleet misc
251312 ADVANCED WORKZONE SERVICES 9,679.00       traffic supplies
251313 ANIMAL EMERGENCY CENTER, PC 294.25          misc
251314 APAC CENTRAL INC 16,523.97     contract services
251315 ATLAS MATERIAL HANDLING LLC 820.00          misc
251316 BANNER FIRE EQUIPMENT INC 3,206.51       Fire truck parts for repair
251317 BEN E. KEITH 13,638.51     concessions
251318 BG PRODUCTS INC 5,093.60       fleet misc
251319 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 8,500.00       lawncare contractor
251320 BRENNTAG SOUTHWEST INC 11,104.91     chemical contractor
251321 BRITE COMPUTERS 9,420.00       IT equipment for various locations
251322 BROWN'S SHOE FIT CO #87 124.95          employee vouchers
251323 BWI COMPANIES, INC 9,975.59       Parks chemicals/mowing
251324 CARE AROUND THE CLOCK INC 7,602.21       medical services
251325 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 483.37          misc
251326 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 2,101.22       uniforms/janitorial
251327 CIRCLE B UNDERGROUND 55.00             misc
251328 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 1,750.00       lawncare contractor
251329 CLIFFORD POWER SYSTEMS INC 2,510.03       generator service
251330 COOK CONSULTING LLC 288,468.99  projects contractor
251331 CORE & MAIN LP 1,212.09       publicworks parts
251332 CREATIVE APPAREL & MORE 227.97          misc
251333 CUMMINS SOUTHERN PLAINS LTD 410.56          misc
251334 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES INC 99.00             misc
251335 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 373.32          fleet misc
251336 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 1,454.00       misc dues/licenses
251337 DRIVE SHAFTS INC 1,495.00       fleet parts
251338 EODLS 9,000.00       Hultquist Trust interest
251339 EON APPLICATIONS, INC 5,154.00       Acquire TM subscription
251340 EPIC SPORTS INC. 5,433.15       Hatbox equipment/striping
251341 EWING IRRIGATION 3,600.00       Parks chemicals
251342 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 3,475.45       temp employees
251343 FASTENAL COMPANY 687.60          misc supplies
251344 AVERY LAWN CARE 1,810.00       lawncare contractor
251345 FILL DIRT, INC. 1,000.00       misc
251346 FIVE STAR DEMOLITION 1,074.00       demo contractor
251347 FIVE STAR OFFICE SUPPLY 983.00          office supplies
251348 FLEETPRIDE INC 83.98             misc
251349 FROST OIL CO., LLC 23,429.01     fuel
251350 GARY GARVIN D 6,000.00       contract services
251351 LORNA K. GOOD DBA GOOD CONCRET 12,530.00     concrete pouring/lay services



251352 GORDON'S HEATING-AIR CONDITION 9,100.00       HVAC contractor services
251353 HARCROS CHEMICALS INC 1,445.00       Parks lawn chemicals
251354 HARNESS ROOFING, INC 8,426.87       contract services
251355 USA BLUEBOOK 111.01          PW lab equipment
251356 HELENA CHEMICAL COMPANY 5,100.00       Parks chemicals
251357 HOLLOWAY UPDIKE AND BELLEN INC 5,882.50       project contractor
251358 HUGHES LUMBER CO 383.93          misc supplies
251359 I 40 RACE SERVICE LLC 296.25          misc
251360 INTERSTATE ELECTRIC CORPORATIO 63,494.00     WWTP recirculating pump repair
251361 J & R EQUIPMENT 2,471.55       Publicworks misc
251362 JOE GODDARD ENTERPRISES, LLC 2,872.00       EM sirens battery replacements 
251363 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL F.S.B. 2,743.19       misc/uniform
251364 JOHNSON'S SERVICE COMPANY 335.00          misc
251365 JMDG 803.96          misc
251366 KIMBALL MIDWEST 1,106.13       misc
251367 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 3,386.18       online Police reporting
251368 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 129.93          misc supplies/parts
251369 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #170650 174.00          misc
251370 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #170700 3,003.60       misc
251371 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #237600 36.00             misc
251372 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #9280878 108.00          misc
251373 LOWES 4,223.77       misc supplies/parts
251374 MARC MILLER BUICK-GMC, INC. 314.57          fleet misc
251375 MARIO'S QUALITY OVERHEAD DOORS 225.00          door repairs
251376 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 10,020.75     PublicWorks mower/mowing parts
251377 MATLOCK SECURITY SERVICES 1,127.00       misc services
251378 MES I ACQUISITION INC 449.00          misc
251379 MMSGS 1,373.24       Fire msic
251380 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 1,398.00       tow services
251381 KELLY MURRY 532.50          airport janitorial services
251382 MUSKOGEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 370.00          event registration/fees
251383 MUSKOGEE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 150.00          communications
251384 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 234.00          filing fees
251385 MUSKOGEE DAILY PHOENIX 677.83          ad/subscriptions
251386 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 168.00          misc
251387 MUSKOGEE MEDICAL CENTER AUTHOR 12,640.69     note/interest
251388 MUSKOGEE MEDICAL CENTER AUTHOR 14,720.29     note/interest
251389 MUSKOGEE OVERHEAD DOOR 1,200.00       door repair
251390 MUSKOGEE REDI-MIX LLC 6,452.50       concrete contractor
251391 MUSKOGEE SIGN AND BANNER 300.00          misc
251392 MUSKOGEE TOURISM AUTHORITY 132,095.14  Hotel/Motel submission
251393 NAFECO INC 25,060.54     Fire bunker gear
251394 NEWTON, BRYCE DBA 1,410.00       portable septic services
251395 OFFICE CONNECTIONS LLC 719.69          office supplies
251396 OFFICE DEPOT 27.13             office supplies
251397 OG&E - ACCT #35947999-5 210,600.38  city utility
251398 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 2,255.21       city utility
251399 OKLAHOMA UNIFORM BUILDING CODE 524.00          misc
251400 OLSSON ASSOCIATES 46,550.00     projects engineer service
251401 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 1,923.72       fleet parts
251402 OTA-PLATEPAY 4.03               tolls



251403 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 710.33          misc
251404 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP 1,026.04       fleet misc/parts
251405 PREMIER USA INC. 7,948.46       temp employees
251406 R J THOMAS MFG CO INC 2,106.00       misc
251407 THOMAS RORABAUGH J 6,563.00       EM portable lighting
251408 ROY'S UPHOLSTERY 225.00          fleet misc
251409 ROYSE PRINTING CO 425.00          printing services
251410 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 1,854.59       janitorial/misc supplies
251411 SPECIAL OPS UNIFORMS 4,340.27       uniforms
251412 STAUB INVESTMENTS INC. DBA GAL 16.00             misc
251413 STEWART MARTIN EQUIPMENT 1,690.73       misc parts
251414 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 556.73          towels/mats services
251415 SUPERIOR SIGNS 85.00             misc
251416 TIM SYNAR 1,855.00       spay/neuter services
251417 T-MOBILE USA INC. 3,389.73       City mobile phones/data
251418 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 2,918.66       bill notices
251419 TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC 24,780.02     Intensive level survey of CBD
251420 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 1,300.00       elevator service
251421 TOMAHAWK STRATEGIES LLC 20,000.00     CIP education program
251422 TWIN CITIES READY MIX INC 1,485.50       Publicworks/parks concrete services
251423 ULINE INC 1,151.38       misc
251424 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 1,199.24       uniforms
251425 UNIQUE DRY CLEANING 378.00          FD uniforms cleaning
251426 USA BLUEBOOK 191.16          public works misc
251427 UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES IN 54,385.00     meter software
251428 WARREN CAT 74,031.00     Civic Center skid steer loader
251429 WATER TECH, INC. 20,475.00     chemical contractor
251430 WHEELER METALS 1,292.79       misc
251431 YORK & MAIN EQUITY GROUP INC 15,000.00     sewer repair
251432 ZEBEC OF NORTH AMERICA INC 1,966.29       misc
251433 LESLIE ARNOLD 363.04          travel/education



   
Finance Committee 3.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For:  Dennis Read, Finance 
Initiator: Benita Hotema, Assistant Financial Analyst
Department: Finance
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Resolution No. 3035 declaring items of personal property presently in the
possession of the City of Muskogee, to be surplus to the needs of the City of Muskogee, and authorize
the City Manager, or his designee, to offer for sale or dispose of the same, all as per attached list, or
take other necessary action. (Kendal Francis)

BACKGROUND:
Items are listed within Resolution 3035 to be considered for surplus from this fiscal year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve items for Surplus.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 3035 Surplus 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 3035

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN ITEMS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY
PRESENTLY IN THE POSSESSION OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, TO BE
SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE AND AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO OFFER FOR SELL OR DISPOSE OF THE SAME AS
ATTACHED LIST.

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma has in its possession certain items of
personal property which can no longer be put to good use; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee desires to dispose of items of personal property,
which are no longer needed, as surplus properties, according to the provisions of the Charter and
the Ordinances of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA;

SECTION 1:  The property listed herein is hereby declared to be surplus to the needs of
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma.

ITEM
DESCRIPTION

QT
Y WORKS? SERIAL # BRAND MODEL

Civic Center
Basketball floor ? Yes
Score Boards 4 Yes
Support Equipment ? Yes
Hydraulic goals 2 Yes Gared
Information Tech
(IT)
Desktop computer 8 HJJ4FB2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020

JJTP052 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
9CLXDB2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
DRRQG42 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
7BRP052 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
6FTP052 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
HJK5FB2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020
9TCYDB2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7020

Desktop computer 9 CP4CXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP4QXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040



 

CP5CXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP5PXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP4RXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
DTPQXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP3DXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP3PXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040
CP3GXG2 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7040

Desktop computer 10 6SBXZ12 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
JD4H842 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
D3WTQW1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
4RP6GZ1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
6SCZZ12 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
6SDXZ12 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
FKL2FZ1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
8QQ8Q22 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
8QQBQ22 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010
4RP7GZ1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 7010

Desktop computers 1 D8XS7Y1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 9010
Desktop computer 1 5JH1NN1 Dell Inc. OptiPlex 960
Laptop 1 FVCZ302 Dell Inc. Latitude 3540
ToughBook 1 FXSWNY1 Dell Inc. Latitude 5414
Police
Heavy bag stand 1 Yes Century 10870 R0305
Swim&Fitness
Treadmill 1 No 0314648 SportsArt T655
Water Plant
50HP electrical
motor 1 Yes T10T176R004R-8 G249 US Electric Motors

3 Phase
230/480

Handi-Kleen Parts
Washer 1 No K-82 Gray-Mills A-25398-A
Fleet
GOOD ROADS
GODWIN M3-10
SAND
SPREADER 1 No GR24386 Good Roads M3-10
2000
INTERNATIONAL
4700 BASE DUMP
TRUCK 1 No 1HTSCABM6YH238117 International 4700
1996 DODGE
RAM 1500 BASE
TRUCK 1 Yes 1B7HC16Y3TJ201158 Dodge Ram 1500
1994 FORD
LNT8000F BASE
BUCKET TRUCK 1 Yes 1FDYW82E9RVA32434 Ford LNT8000F



 

1988 E-ONE FIRE
engine (Reserve 9) 1 Yes 1F9PBAA82K1037604 E-One
Rotary HP415-
1KIT 60,000 lb Lift 1 Yes XTB00A0013 Rotary HP415-1Kit
2008 DODGE
CHARGER R/T
(PD) 1 Yes 2B3KA43HX8H279819 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H18H279823 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H88H279821 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43HX8H279822 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H18H279806 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H08H279814 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H28H279801 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H78H279812 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43HX8H279805 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H38H279807 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H88H279804 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H08H279800 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H38H279810 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H68H279817 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H48H279816 Dodge Charger



 

2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H88H279818 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H48H279802 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 No 2B3KA43H58H279808 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H98H279813
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H28H279815
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 Yes 2B3KA43H88H279799
2013 DODGE
CHARGER R/T
SEDAN 1 Yes 2C3CDXAT4DH721849 Dodge Charger
2013 DODGE
CHARGER R/T
SEDAN 1 Yes 2C3CDXAT9DH721846 Dodge Charger
2013 DODGE
CHARGER R/T
SEDAN 1 Yes 2C3CDXAT0DH721847 Dodge Charger
2013 DODGE
CHARGER R/T
SEDAN 1 Yes 2C3CDXAT7DH721845 Dodge Charger
2005 CHEVROLET
SILVERADO 3500
BASE UTILITY
TRUCK 1 Yes 1GBJC39U45E236863 Chevrolet 3500
1995 FORD F350
XL (WB) UTILITY
BUCKET TRUCK 1 Yes 2FDKF37G1SCA36749 Ford F-350
1998 WOLFPAC
AVR 4000 ROLLER 1 No 3998046 WOLFPAC 4000
1999 RHINO SR15
ROTARY
CUTTER 1 Yes 15349 Rhino SR15
2001 DODGE RAM
1500 SPORT
TRUCK 1 Yes 1B7HC16Y21S770607 Dodge 1500
1995
CHEVROLET
C1500 BASE
TRUCK 1 Yes 1GCEC14H7SZ194821 Chevrolet C1500



 

1997 JOHN
DEERE 310SE
BACKHOE 1 No T0310SE840375 John Deere 310SE

2002 FORD NEW
HOLLAND TS100
TRACTOR
W/2002 ALAMO
MB21 MACHETE
BOOM ARM
MOWER Yes

7579 SN: 195512B
7538 SN: MB21-01841 Ford & Alamo

Ford TS100 &
Alamo MB21

2007 FORD F150
SUPERCAB XL
TRUCK 1 Yes 1FTPX12V17FA90047 Ford F150
1999 INGERSOLL
RAND BOBCAT
C863 SKID
STEER 1 514412307 Bobcat C863
GENSET 50
GENERATOR ON
A TRAILER 1 No G830669399 Genset 50
2004 EXMARK
LZ27KC604 ZERO
TURN, 60" DECK 1 No 485039 Exmark LZ27KC604
HUSQVARNA
MZ5424S (DECK
IS 52") ZERO
TURN MOWER 1 No 072111B001083 Husqvarna MZ54245
2010 TORO
74925TE
MOWER, 60"
DECK 1 No 310000582 Toro 74925TE
2004 GALAXY
SPEEDTRAK SST
RADAR TRAILER 1 No 10114H659121 Galaxy Speedtrack SST
1999 INGERSOLL
RAND BOBCAT
C863 SKID
STEER 1 Yes 514427861 Bobcat C863
2016
FREIGHTLINER
M2 106
SANITATION
TRUCK 1 No 1FVACXCY2GHHG2590 Freightliner M2 106
2012 TORO 74936
ZERO TURN
MOWER, 60"
DECK 1 No 312000175 Toro 74936
2009 TORO 74263
ZERO TURN 1 No 270000220 Toro 74263



 

MOWER, 72"
DECK
2014 TORO 74946
ZERO TURN
MOWER, 60"
DECK 1 No 314000356 Toro 74946

2000 DODGE
DAKOTA TRUCK,
BASE 1 Yes 1B7FL26X6YS738774 Dodge Dakota
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 No 2B3KA43H58H279808 Dodge Charger
2008 DODGE
CHARGER SE
SEDAN 1 2B3KA43H78H279809 Dodge Charger
1998
CHEVROLET
C1500 WT
TRUCK 1 Yes 1GCEC14R0WZ217726 Chevrolet C1500
1997 DODGE RAM
1500 LT TRUCK 1 Yes 1B7HC16Y7VJ560743 Dodge 1500
2002
CHEVROLET
EXPRESS 1500
VAN (BASE) 1 Yes 1GNFG15M421246982 Chevrolet 1500
2004 DODGE
DAKOTA SXT
TRUC 1 Yes 1D7FL16K64S653612 Dodge Dakota
SEWER
EQUIPMENT OF
AMERICA 444
RODDER SEWER
JETTING
TRAILER 1 Yes 7432 Sewer Equipment 444 Rodder
1998 DODGE RAM
1500 TRUCK,
BASE 1 No 1B7HC16X5WS665056 Dodge 1500
2018 DODGE
CHARGER
PURSUIT SEDAN 1 No 2C3CDXAT9JH238367 Dodge Charger
Coats 5040A Rim
Clamp Tire
Machine 1 Yes Coats 5040A
Coats 5065AX Rim
Clamp Tire
Machine 1 Yes Coats 5065AX
Coats Direct Drive
1000 Tire Balancer 1 Yes 1312306037 Coats 1000
Tool boxes for back
of truck 3



 

STIHL HT101
POLE SAW 1 No 268594491 STIHL HT101
2011 ECHO SRM-
265S TRIMMER 1 No S79712007634 ECHO SRM-265S
SHINDAWA 22F
TRIMMER 1 No 9112452 SHINDAWA 22F
2012 ECHO
SRM266
TRIMMER 1 No T42112004420 ECHO SRM-266

SECTION 2:  The City of Muskogee authorizes the City Manager to sell or otherwise dispose of
said real property and personal property listed above.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma this
________day of _____________________, 2025.

CITY OF MUSKOGEE,
A municipal corporation,

___________________________
PATRICK CALE, MAYOR

ATTEST

______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

APPROVED as to form and legality this ______ day of _________________, 2025.

_________________________________
KATRINA BODENHAMER, CITY ATTORNEY



   
Finance Committee 4.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For: Dennis Read, Finance  Initiator: Dennis Read,

Treasurer
Department: Finance
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to authorize the City Manager to execute an Engagement Letter with Crawford and
Associates, Certified Public Accountants, to perform audit preparation and produce financial
statements for the FY2025 audit, or take other necessary action. (Dennis Read)

BACKGROUND:
The City of Muskogee contacted Crawford and Associates to perform audit preparation for
FY2024-2025.The cost of their audit preparation is on an hourly basis and they cannot give a
not-to-exceed limit on their fees.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the City Manager to execute the audit preparation engagement letter with Crawford and
Associates for the fiscal year 2025.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Crawford FY25 Engagement Letter 













   
Finance Committee 5.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For: Mark Wilkerson, Parks &

Recreation 
Initiator: Ashley Wallace

Department: Parks & Recreation
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of final payment to RJR Enterprises, Inc., in the amount of $26,377.88, for the
Langston Park Splash Pad, Project No. 2023029, or take other necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson)

BACKGROUND:
Langston Park is located at the SE corner of the intersection of Euclid Ave. and Sandow Street.  This
two (2) acre park north of Shawnee has a shaded picnic area, playground, and basketball court. 

The splash pad project provided for the addition of a 1,300 SF splash pad east of the existing shade
structure, two (2) new parking spaces with ADA accessibility, sidewalks connecting all elements of the
project to the new splash pad, an additional shade structure, and site furnishings.  The project also
provided site grading, utility additions associated with the project elements, and sodding.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Final Pay App 



APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT   
TO:         PROJECT: Langston Park APPLICATION NO: 3 Distribution to:

 PROJECT NO: 2023029 x OWNER
PERIOD TO: x ARCHITECT

X CONTRACTOR
FROM: VIA (ARCHITECT): PDG ARCHITECT PROJECT NO: 2023029
RJR Enterprises Inc.

CONTRACT DATE: 1/7/2025

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge,
Application is made for Payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract. information and belief the Work covered by this Application for payment has been
Continuation Sheet, AIA Document G703, is attached. completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been
1.  ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM....................................   $291,030.50 paid by the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were
2.  Net change by Change Orders.............................  $(800.00) issued and payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown 
3.  CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1+2)..................   $290,230.50 herein is now due.

4.  TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE..........    
a. Total Owner Paid Materials: $0.00 CONTRACTOR:

b. Total Direct to Contractor: $0.00
(Column K on G703) $290,230.50 By: Date: 11/18/2024

5. Less Retainage 5% % of Completed Work  State of      County of
Retainage this period $0.00 Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1 day of January ### 2025

6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE $290,230.50 Notary Public:
7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT (Line 6 from prior certificate) $263,852.62 My Commission expires: 

ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT
In accordance with the contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the
data comprising the above application, the Architect certifies to the owner that to the

8.  CURRENT PAYMENT DUE........................................   $26,377.88 best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as
9.  BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE..............   (Line 3 Less Line 6) $26,377.88 indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and

the Contractor is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED.
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS

Total Change Approved in Previous Months by Owner : 0
Total approved this Month : $0.00 $800.00 AMOUNT CERTIFIED.................................. $

TOTALS : $0.00 $800.00 (Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for.)  Initial all figures on this
NET CHANGES by Change Order : Application and Continuation Sheet that are changed to conform with the amount certified

This certificate is not negotiable.  The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the ARCHITECT:
Contractor named herein. Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without
prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. By:  Date:

Arkansas

804 N 42nd St. 
Rogers, AR 72756

($800.00)

Ryan Brown

RJR Enterprises Inc.

26,377.88

City of Muskogee
837 E. Okmulgee
Muskogee, OK 74403

June 21, 2025

Benton

06-23-2025



APPLICATION NUMBER: 3
Document G702, APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT, APPLICATION DATE:
containing Contractor's signed Certification is attached. PERIOD TO:
In tabulations below, amounts are stated to nearest dollar. ARCHITECT PROJECT NO:

A B C D E F G H I J K L M

SUB
ITEM 
NO.

Change 
Order 

Number

DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED VALUE 
TOTAL               

CONTRACT                    
VALUE

WORK FROM 
PREVIOUS 

APPLICATION      
(H)

WORK THIS 
PERIOD

WORK TOTAL         
TO DATE

MATERIAL FROM 
PREVIOUS 

APPLICATION        
(K)

MATERIAL THIS 
PERIOD 

MATERIAL COST 
TO DATE

TOTAL 
COMPLETED AND 
STORED TO DATE

% Completed 
to Date

BALANCE TO 
FINISH

1 Mobilization 5,000.00 250.00 $0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 $5,000.00 100% 250.00

2 Bonding and Insurance 7,500.00 375.00 $0.00 7,500.00 0.00 0.00 $7,500.00 100% 375.00

3 Staking 5,250.00 262.50 $0.00 5,250.00 0.00 0.00 $5,250.00 100% 262.50

4 Earthwork Excavation 4,750.00 237.50 0.00 4,750.00 0.00 0.00 $4,750.00 100% 237.50

5 Filter Fabric Silt Fence 1,417.50 19.58 0.00 1,471.50 0.00 0.00 $1,471.50 100% 73.57

6 Electric Service 16,100.00 15,295.00 0.00 16,100.00 0.00 0.00 $16,100.00 100% 0.00

7 Water Service 19,000.00 2,850.00 0.00 19,000.00 0.00 0.00 $19,000.00 100% 0.00

8 Parking 3,780.00 189.00 0.00 3,780.00 0.00 0.00 $3,780.00 100% 189.00

9 Parking 3,978.00 198.90 0.00 3,978.00 0.00 0.00 $3,978.00 100% 198.90

10 Parking Blocks 2,500.00 125.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 $2,500.00 100% 125.00

11 Drainline 4,392.00 1,432.80 0.00 4,392.00 0.00 0.00 $4,392.00 100% 1,432.80

12 Cleanout 1,000.00 50.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 $1,000.00 100% 50.00

13 Concrete 11,110.00 555.50 0.00 11,110.00 0.00 0.00 $11,110.00 100% 555.50

14 5" Concrete 14,113.00 705.65 0.00 14,113.00 0.00 0.00 $14,113.00 100% 705.65

15 Turf Flat 2,300.00 115.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.00 0.00 $2,300.00 100% 115.00

16 Turf Berm 10,925.00 546.25 0.00 10,925.00 0.00 0.00 $10,925.00 100% 546.25

17 Splash Pad Equipment with Install 125,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 $125,000.00 100% 10,000.00

18 Rules Signage 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 $3,500.00 100% 3,500.00

19 Bermuda Sod 10,350.00 10,350.00 0.00 10,350.00 0.00 0.00 $10,350.00 100% 10,350.00

20 Construction Allowance 14,200.00 10,550.00 0.00 14,200.00 0.00 0.00 $14,200.00 100% 11,350.00

21 Traffic Control Plan 5,750.00 1,250.00 $0.00 5,750.00 0.00 0.00 $5,750.00 100% 1,250.00

22 Alternate 1 18,315.00 0.00 18,315.00 18,315.00 0.00 0.00 $18,315.00 100% 18,315.00

TOTALS 290,230.50 $63,114.94 $21,815.00 $290,230.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $290,230.50 100% $26,377.88

WORK IN PLACE DIRECT PAY MATERIAL COST

6/21/2025
6/21/2025





   
Finance Committee 6.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For: Mark Wilkerson, Parks &

Recreation 
Initiator: Ashley Wallace

Department: Parks & Recreation
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $58,515.41, from Ellsworth Pavement
Maintenance (EPM), for the Hatbox VA Parking Lot Improvements, Project No. 2025009, or take other
necessary action. (Mark Wilkerson)

BACKGROUND:
Due to its extended use and wear over time, the North Hatbox VA parking lot is showing signs of
damage and deterioration.  The City of Muskogee solicited bids in the newspaper and online for a
qualified contractor to complete the repairs and striping of the parking lot. The project includes:
cleaning/surface preparation, crack seal, application of coal tar sealing, and striping of the Hatbox VA
Parking Lot.

Two (2) bids were received and Ellsworth Pavement Maintenance (EPM) was the lowest and best bid in
the amount of $58,515.41.  Contractors were asked to include alternate pricing for diagonal striping and
the Parks Department decided not to include Alternate No. 2 - Diagonal Striping in the amount of
$8,612.33.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Hatbox Bid Tab 



Tabulation Sheet Bid Item: HATBOX VA PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS 2025009

City of Muskogee Date: July 8, 2025 @ 10:00 a.m.

Department: Project Department

Approved by Project Department: Ashley Wallace/Jeff Reeves

Approved by City Council:

Vendors Bid Bond Addendum Maint, Perf, Payment Bond

EPM/Ellsworth Pavement Maintenance x x x

Base Bid
Alt 1 - N. Entrance
Alt 2 - Diagonal Striping
Grand Total

$50,699.23
$7,816.18
$8,612.33

$67,127.74

Ross Construction x x x

Base Bid
Alt 1 - N. Entrance
Alt 2 - Diagonal Striping
Grand Total

$78,350.00
$15,500.00
$10,500.00

$104,350.00



   
Finance Committee 7.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For: Mike Stewart, Public Works  Initiator: Ashley Wallace
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $1,600,000.00, from Cook Consulting,
LLC, for the ARPA Water Treatment Plant Improvements, Project No. 2025010, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The Muskogee Water Treatment Plant Pump Room contains high-service water distribution pumps that
have reached or are nearing the end of their useful life.  City Staff proposed installing new pumps with
Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs), a discharge flow meter with actuator, and all necessary
appurtenances.  The completed improvements will replace aging water treatment and distribution
infrastructure and help sustain water supply for Muskogee's growing community. 

Bids were solicited in the newspaper and online in multiple plan rooms.  

Cowan Engineering and City Staff recommend awarding the project to Cook Consulting, LLC.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Bid Tab 
Engineers Recommendation 







   
Finance Committee 8.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For:  Kristal Keim, Public Works  Initiator: Kristal Keim, PW

Office Admin II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the purchase of one (1) Kubota MX5400HST 4WD Tractor and accessories from
Kubota/Stewart Martin, in the total amount of $52,764.58, per State Contract SW0196NE, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
This equipment is designed to efficiently cut through various terrains, including blind corners, ditches,
and tree branches, when attached to tractors.  It allows for mowing large areas more effectively than a
zero-turn mower.  The newest tractor in our fleet is one year old, while the second oldest is six years
old.  this equipment is utilized daily throughout the mowing season, which runs from March to
November, depending on weather conditions. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval of purchase.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
213-6020-441.64-50

Attachments
quote 
contract 









   
Finance Committee 9.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For: Mike Stewart, Public Works  Initiator: Ashley Wallace
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the lowest and best bid in the amount of $675,881.00, from Beytco, Inc., for the
Keetowah Lift Station No.16, Project No. 2025003, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The Keetowah Lift Station No. 16 is located east of York St. off of Harris Rd.  

The project includes: 

Demolition of the existing lift station that has exceeded its useful life span.
Construction of a Manufactured Equipment Enclosure system.
Construction of a new lift station including:

Two (2) new self-priming pumps.1.
New Stand-by Generator2.
Three (3) new Manhole Stations and two (2) new wet wells.3.
New electrical service and automatic transfer switch.4.
New fencing around the perimeter with 45 degree overhang arms.5.

Three (3) bids were received.  HUB Engineers recommended the low bidder, Beytco, Inc., of Sapulpa,
Oklahoma, to be awarded the contract in the amount of $675,881.00.  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Bid Tab 
Engineer's Recommendation Letter 



CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR

Beytco, Inc. Cook's Consulting LLC Circle B Underground, LLC

PO Box 658 PO Box 10 1215 N Main

Sapulpa, OK 74067 Fort Gibson, OK 74434 Bristow, OK 74010

Total Bid $675,881.00 Total Bid $754,000.00 Total Bid $900,918.00

ITEM 

NO.
DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1
All work shown on the Plans or 

required by the Specifications.
1 LS 631,631.00 $631,631.00 721,000.00 $721,000.00 856,218.00 $856,218.00

2
Undercut soft areas and backfill with 

graded limestone rock.
150 TONS 95.00 $14,250.00 20.00 $3,000.00 98.00 $14,700.00

3

Allowance for work NOT shown on the 

plans or required by the 

specifications.

30,000.00 $30,000.00 30,000.00 $30,000.00 30,000.00 $30,000.00

BID TABULATION

Wastewater System Improvements

Keetoowah Lift Station Replacement (No. 16)

Muskogee Municipal Authority

ORF-17-0019-CW

UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

BID SCHEDULE

Allowance

HUB Project No. 24MUSKKEEPS

June 24, 2025, 11:00 a.m.



818 East Side Boulevard 
Post Office Box 1543 
Muskogee, OK 74402 
P: (918) 682-7811 
F: (918) 682-4551 

 

2001 N Willow Avenue 
Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

P: (918) 251-0717 
F: (918) 251-0754 

hubengineers.com 
 

   

   

 

 
 

H O L L O W A Y ,  U P D I K E  A N D  B E L L E N ,  I N C .  

 
 
July 8, 2025 
 
Ashley Wallace 
Project and Contract Coordinator 
Project Department 
City of Muskogee 
PO Box 1927 
Muskogee, OK 74402 
awallace@muskogeeonline.org 
 
Re: Keetoowah Lift Station (No. 16) 
  
Dear Ms. Wallace: 
 
We have tabulated the bids received on June 24, 2025, on the above referenced project.  A copy of the 
bid tabulation is attached. 
 
The low bidder was Beytco, Inc. of Sapulpa, Oklahoma. To the best of our knowledge, Beytco, Inc. is 
capable of performing the work and should be considered for award of the contract in the amount of 
$675,881.00. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HOLLOWAY, UPDIKE AND BELLEN, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Jay Updike 

Vice President 
 
JU:mm  24MUSKKEEPS 

 
 



   
Finance Committee 10.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For:  Kristal Keim, Public Works  Initiator: Kristal Keim, PW

Office Admin II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Sourcewell pricing from Stewart Martin Equipment in the amount of
$127,388.64, for the purchase of one (1) Kubota KX057-5R3AP Mini-Excavator with attachments, for
use in the Street Division in Public Works, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The Street Division in the Public Works department currently doesn't have a mini-excavator. 
Whenever we need one, we typically borrow from Water Distribution or Pollution Control divisions,
but they are often in use, making it difficult for us to access one.  The Street Division urgently requires
its own mini excavator for work on storm drains and in tight spaces. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval purchase of Kubota Mini Ex KX057-5R3AP with Saw and Hammer.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
213-6030-431.64-50

Attachments
quote 
Sourewell Contract 





112624-KBA 
 

v052824   1 
 

 
 

MASTER AGREEMENT #112624 
CATEGORY:  

SUPPLIER:  
 
This Master Agreement (Agreement) is between Sourcewell, located at 
202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 (Sourcewell) and Kubota Tractor 

 (Supplier). 
  
Sourcewell is a 

 a C Purchasing Program to eligible 
.  

  
Under this Master Agreement entered with Sourcewell, Supplier will provide  to 

C Purchasing Program. 
 

 
General Terms 

 

.  
 
1) Purpose. Pursuant to Minnesota law, t  

Purchasing Program designed to provide P
agreements has awarded Supplier this 

herein. 
 
2) Intent. 

 
 

  C Purchasing Program Master Agreements are 
. 

C Purchasing P
 

 
4) Supplier Access. 

.  



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   2 
 

 
5) Term. 

Time on January , 2029  
 

a) Extensions. Sourcewell and Supplier may agree to up to three  -year extensions 
- (7) 

 
 

b)  
 

 
6) Survival of Terms. 

between 
 

 
7) Scope. RFP #112624 

 
 
a) 

sidewalk, walking path, and parking lot maintenance, and snow removal; 
 

b)  
 
c)  

 
8)  is incorporated into this Master 

.  
 
9)  

.  
 
10)  t

 
 
11)  Suppliers may not exceed the prices listed in the current Pricing List 

with Sourcewell 
 

.  
 
12) Open Market. process is included within its Proposal.  
 
13)  

 
i) Compliance. Supplier represents and warrants it will provide all Included 

 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   3 
 

 
ii) Licenses. 

Supplier.  
 
iii) Supplier Warrants. Supplier warrants that all Included 

in accordance with the ordinary u  
 
14)  

Supplier has disclosed all current and completed bankruptcy proceedings within the past seven years 

 
 
15) Debarment and Suspension. 

nt, or any 

warrants that it will p
 

 
16) Provisions for non-

II to 2 C.F.R § 200). 

Included  
 

i)  
60, all agreements 

- -1.4(b), in 

-
 

 
 
ii) DAVIS- -3148). 

-
- -

-



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   4 
 

laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages sp

wages not less than once a week. The non-
 

-

-

Financed in 

-

-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
iii) -  

-

the purchases 

 
 
iv) RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. 

 
 

 
v) -

-  



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   5 
 

-
- 

- 

 
 
vi)  A contract 

department or agency. 
 
vii) BYRD ANTI-  Suppliers must 

bying with non-

-
-  

 
viii) To the extent applicable, Supplier must comply 

grantees or 
 

 
ix) ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, 

 
 
x) BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Supplier must 

 
 
xi)  



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   6 
 

 
 
xii) A non-

 consistent with maintaining a 

solid waste management services in a m

 
 
xiii)  The Supplier cannot use the seal(s), logos, crests, 

-approval.  
 
xiv) NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. 

 
 
xv) PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS. The 

 
 
xvi) FEDERAL DEBT. -

 
 
xvii) CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

(as 

 
 
xviii)  The Supplier, and its subcontractors, must comply with 

 
 
xix) PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE 

 
 

 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   7 
 

xx) DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Supplier 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
1) 

 
 
2)  changes, 

 
  
  
  
 

 
 

restatement must include all Included 
 

 

  
 

  

 
  
  
  

 
.  

 
4)  Supplier will 

 chain issues, customer issues, and 
 

 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   8 
 

5)  

provide complete and accurate 

this Agreement.  
 
6)  

ch calendar 

Supplier must submit a  
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
 Account Number; 
  
  
  
  

 
collected by Supplier,  

  
  
  

 
7)  

in its proposed pricing. 
 

 
8)  

 For certain categories, a  may be 
proposed. .  

 
9)  

-assigned Agreement 
number in the memo; and must be either mailed to Sourcewell 

 
 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   9 
 

10) Noncompliance. Sourcewell reserves the right to seek all remedies available 

payments

 
 
11) Audit Requirements. Pursuant to Minn. Stat.  16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 

and 

 
Sourcewell. 

 
12) and 

consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Sourcewell reserves the right to unilaterally assign all or 

Responsible Party and named in the Agreement. Any prohibited 
 Sou

-material updates as 
determined  

 
 Amendments. 

.  
 
14) Waiver. Failure by Sourcewell to any right under this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver 

right.  
 
15)   

 
 
16)  

-servant, or 
principal-agent.  

 
17)  

 Agreement by the Supplier 

 
 
18)  



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   10 
 

chapter.  
 
19) Grant of License.  

a)  
i)  Sourcewell grants to Supplier a royalty- -exclusive 

Agreement with Supplier. 
 

ii)  Supplier grants to Sourcewell a royalty- -

Sourcewell. 
 

b)  

 b
sublicensees.  

 
c)  

i) 
.  

 
ii) 

g misuse under 

 
 

d)  

-printed 

 
 
20)  

 
.  

 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   11 
 

21)  

 
 
22)  At its own expense, Supplier must maintain valid insurance policy(ies) during 

- verage and 
 

 
a)  

-completed 
bility, and 

Agreement. 
  
  
 -  
  

 
b)  

Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or provided to in an 

 
 

 
c) -  Supplier 

provide that coverage is primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, 
-  

 
d)  

ble to 
-insured 

 
 



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   12 
 

e) -INSURED RETENTION. Agreement can 

-  
 

  Sourcewell or Supplier may terminate this Agreement upon 60 

any 

 
 
24)  

alendar days 

any 
 

 
 

 
 

 
.  

 
1)  

thin 
 .  

 
2)  

 and other relevant terms 

non-
 

terms may include, but are not l

 
 

 Applicable Taxes. -exempt status and 
-  

 
4)  

y. 
 
5)  



112624-KBA 
 

v052824   13 
 

account number.  
 
6)  . 

terms may supplant or supersede this Master Agreement when necessary and as solely determined 

within this Master Agreement, 
-

and other material terms as mutually agreed.  
 
7)  

-

beyond th  
.  

 
8)  

  
 
 
  

        Sourcewell          Kubota Tractor Corporation 
 
 

__________________________  
 Paul Manger 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



Bid Number: RFP 112624 Vendor Name: Kubota Tractor Corporation



   
Finance Committee 11.        
Meeting Date: 07/14/2025  
Submitted For:  Kristal Keim, Public Works  Initiator: Kristal Keim, PW

Office Admin II
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Sourcewell pricing from River City Hydraulics, of Sherwood, Arkansas, for the
purchase of two (2) 2026 PowerTrak 1000 Rear Loaders, in the amount of $221,662.21 each, for a total
of $443,324.42, for use in the Solid Waste Division, or take other necessary action. (Mike Stewart)

BACKGROUND:
The Solid Waste Division of the Public Works Department is acquiring two (2) 2026 PowerTrak 1000
Rear Loaders.  Our current rear-load trucks are frequently out of service, resulting in operational
challenges.  On certain days, we lack sufficient trucks to complete our routes, leading to delays in trash
collection and requiring extended hours to ensure all routes are covered. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve purchase of two (2) 2026 PowerTrak 1000 Rear Loaders. 

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
212-6050-432.64-10

Attachments
Sourewell Contract 
Sourewell Pricing 
quote 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP #110223 
 

CONTRACT 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and The Heil Co. d/b/a Heil Environmental, 201 W. Main Street, Suite 300, 
Chattanooga, TN 37408 (Supplier). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to eligible 
federal, state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Refuse Collection Vehicles with Related Equipment, 
Accessories and Services from which Supplier was awarded a contract.     

  
Supplier desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires December 28, 2027, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract allows up to three additional one-year 
extensions upon the request of Sourcewell and written agreement by Supplier. Sourcewell 
retains the right to consider additional extensions beyond seven years as required under 
exceptional circumstances.  
 
 
B. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Notwithstanding any expiration or termination of this Contract, all 
payment obligations incurred prior to expiration or termination will survive, as will the 
following: Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this Contract. All 
other rights will cease upon expiration or termination of this Contract. 
 
 
 
 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           2 
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Supplier will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Supplier’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new and the current model.  
Supplier may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated 
in Supplier’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.  
 
B. WARRANTY. Supplier warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship 
subject to Supplier's standard published warranty applicable to the specific Product(s). In 
addition, Supplier warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended, as set forth in 
Supplier’s published Standard Warranty. Supplier’s dealers and distributors must agree to assist 
the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute over warranty terms with the 
manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that extends beyond the expiration of the 
Supplier’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity. Supplier’s warranty applies 
only to the refuse collection body. Warranties for other components including but not limited 
to the chassis, chassis options, or any non-Supplier components, shall be administered and 
addressed by the respective third-party product manufacturer(s).  Supplier’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute 
over warranty terms with the third-party manufacturer.  Warranties for components 
subsequently installed by the Participating Entity shall be administered and addressed solely by 
the respective third-party product manufacturer(s). 
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution and throughout 
the Contract term, Supplier must provide to Sourcewell a current means to validate or 
authenticate Supplier’s authorized dealers, distributors, or resellers relative to the Equipment, 
Products, and Services offered under this Contract, which will be incorporated into this 
Contract by reference. It is the Supplier’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most 
current information.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced at or below the price 
stated in Supplier’s Proposal.  



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           3 
 

 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, and Supplier has not scheduled repair or replacement of any 
damaged Equipment or Products within 30 days after notice given by Participating Entity to 
Supplier, Supplier must permit the Equipment and Products to be returned within a reasonable 
time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. Participating Entities reserve the right 
to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable time after delivery where circumstances 
or conditions prevent effective inspection of the Equipment and Products at the time of 
delivery. In the event of the delivery of nonconforming Equipment and Products, the 
Participating Entity will notify the Supplier as soon as possible and the Supplier will replace or 
repair nonconforming Equipment and Products with conforming Equipment and Products that 
are acceptable to the Participating Entity.  
Supplier’s Equipment and Product is limited to the refuse collection body and does not include 
the chassis; any non-conforming parts of the chassis or non-conforming equipment 
subsequently installed by the Participating Entity must be repaired or replaced by the 
respective OEM.   
   
Supplier must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Supplier in breach of this Contract if the Supplier intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products.  
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Supplier with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Supplier may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Supplier determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           4 
 

 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Supplier may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. This 
approved form is available from the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. 
At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 

effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 
restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Change Request Form will become an 
amendment to this Contract and will be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Supplier understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
Supplier’s ability and willingness to sell Equipment, Products, and Services to a Participating 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           5 
 

Entity is subject to the availability of Supplier’s Equipment, Products, and Services and 
Supplier’s agreement to a purchase order. 
 
Supplier is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 
to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Supplier’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Supplier’s employees and agents must conduct themselves 
in a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Supplier that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Supplier. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Supplier or its authorized 
subsidiary, distributor, dealer, or reseller. If a Participating Entity issues a purchase order, it 
may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell 
contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this Contract must be issued prior to 
expiration or cancellation of this Contract; however, Supplier performance, Participating Entity 
payment obligations, and any applicable warranty periods or other Supplier or Participating 
Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract. Supplier must agree to or 
otherwise accept a purchase order for it to become binding and effective. 
 
Supplier’s acceptable forms of payment are included in its attached Proposal.  Participating 
Entities will be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any 
unpaid invoice of any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Supplier, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or immigration status requirements), 
or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating Entities may require the use of a 
Participating Addendum, the terms of which will be negotiated directly between the 
Participating Entity and the Supplier or its authorized dealers, distributors, or resellers, as 
applicable.  Any negotiated additional terms and conditions must never be less favorable to the 
Participating Entity than what is contained in this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements not addressed in this Contract (such as e-



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           6 
 

commerce specifications, specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and 
requirements), the Participating Entity and the Supplier may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Supplier in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the equipment, products, or services to be purchased; or 
2. Federal, state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Supplier will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Supplier must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, sales data reports, performance issues, supply 
issues, customer issues, and any other necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Supplier must provide a 
contract sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator 
assigned to this Contract. Reports are due no later than 45 days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Supplier must submit a report indicating no sales were 
made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           7 
 

 Participating Entity Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Participating Entity Physical Street Address; 
 Participating Entity City; 
 Participating Entity State/Province; 
 Participating Entity Zip/Postal Code; 
 Participating Entity Contact Name; 
 Participating Entity Contact Email Address; 
 Participating Entity Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Supplier. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Supplier will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Supplier may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Supplier will submit payment to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased 
by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should 
note the Supplier’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be 
mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to 
Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments 
must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

 
Supplier agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Supplier is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Supplier in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           8 
 

Supplier’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Supplier’s Proposal. If 
Supplier’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Supplier must 
promptly notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant to this Contract are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party may assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under 
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Any prohibited 
assignment will be invalid.    
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been duly executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. Failure by either party to take action or assert any right under this Contract will 
not be deemed a waiver of such right in the event of the continuation or repetition of the 
circumstances giving rise to such right. Any such waiver must be in writing and signed by the 
parties. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract represents the complete agreement between the 
parties. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or oral, may be used 
to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the terms set out in 
Articles 1-22 of this Contract, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  
 

11. INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
  

Supplier must indemnify, defend, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, 
including their agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities, to the extent 
caused by any negligent act or omission in the performance of this Contract by the Supplier or 
its agents or employees; this indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property 
alleged to have been caused by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           9 
 

Contract to the extent the Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its 
specifications. Sourcewell’s responsibility will be governed by the State of Minnesota’s Tort 
Liability Act (Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466) and other applicable law. 
 
 
 
IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, 
OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, EVEN IF NOTIFIED OF SAME. 
 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Supplier and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, maintained, or 
disseminated by the Supplier under this Contract.  
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Supplier a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use the trademark(s) provided to Supplier by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Supplier. 
b. Supplier grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Supplier’s trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Supplier’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. OMITTED  
3. Use; Quality Control.  

a. Neither party may alter the other party’s trademarks from the form provided 
and must comply with removal requests as to specific uses of its trademarks or 
logos.   
b. Each party agrees to use, the other party’s trademarks only in good faith and in 
a dignified manner consistent with such party’s use of the trademarks. Upon written 
notice to the breaching party, the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the 
written notice to cure the breach or the license will be terminated.  

4. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, will have 
30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, and the like bearing the other 
party’s name or logo(excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed catalog of suppliers which may be 
used until the next printing).  Supplier must return all marketing and promotional materials, 
including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose of it according to Sourcewell’s written 
directions. 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           10 
 

B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Supplier individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Send all approval requests to the Sourcewell Supplier Development 
Administrator assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Supplier must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
The substantive and procedural laws of the State of Minnesota will govern this Contract. Venue 
for all legal proceedings arising out of this Contract, or its breach, must be in the appropriate 
state court in Todd County, Minnesota or federal court in Fergus Falls, Minnesota.  
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, 
unenforceable, or void then both parties will be relieved from all obligations arising from that 
provision. If the remainder of this Contract is capable of being performed, it will not be affected 
by such determination or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Supplier will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes 
the issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           11 
 

2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Supplier may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Supplier will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Supplier must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Supplier fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, the Supplier will bear any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its 
Participating Entities as a result of such failure to proceed. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
The party claiming default must provide written notice of the default, with 30 calendar days to 
cure the default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

18. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Supplier must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect 
at all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Supplier will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 
broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           12 
 

CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for products liability-completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Supplier will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), 
or equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 
4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Supplier will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Employer’s Liability, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Supplier will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The coverage 
may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a standalone 
policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of Supplier’s 
security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized access, 
disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or private 
information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Supplier to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Supplier must 
furnish to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           13 
 

Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must 
be signed by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Supplier to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Supplier of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Supplier agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Supplier’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Supplier, and/or the defective products and completed 
operations of Supplier. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that 
coverage is primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and 
collectible insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Supplier waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Supplier or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Supplier or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Supplier must 
require similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Supplier must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Supplier conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
 
 

 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           14 
 

20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 
 
Supplier certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Supplier declares bankruptcy, Supplier must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Supplier certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Supplier certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Supplier further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may have additional 
requirements based on specific funding source terms or conditions. Within this Article, all 
references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Supplier’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           15 
 

laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Supplier must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Supplier certifies that during the term of 
an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Supplier must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Supplier 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Supplier must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           16 
 

 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 
Supplier certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements 
as referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Supplier 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Suppliers must file 
any required certifications. Suppliers must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Suppliers must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Suppliers must file all certifications and 
disclosures required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 
U.S.C. § 1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Supplier must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Supplier further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Supplier 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           17 
 

J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Supplier must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Supplier agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Supplier that are directly pertinent to Supplier’s discharge of its obligations under 
this Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The 
right also includes timely and reasonable access to Supplier’s personnel for the purpose of 
interview and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 
M. FEDERAL SEAL(S), LOGOS, AND FLAGS. The Supplier cannot use the seal(s), logos, crests, or 
reproductions of flags or likenesses of Federal agency officials without specific pre-approval.  
 
N. NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. The U.S. federal government is not a party to 
this Contract or any purchase by a Participating Entity and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the Participating Entity, Supplier, or any other party pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the Contract or any purchase by an authorized user.  
 
O. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS. The 
Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the Supplier’s actions pertaining to this Contract or any purchase by a 
Participating Entity.  
 
P. FEDERAL DEBT. The Supplier certifies that it is non-delinquent in its repayment of any 
federal debt.  Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowance, and benefit overpayments.  
 
Q. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. The Supplier must notify the U.S. Office of General Services, 
Sourcewell, and Participating Entity as soon as possible if this Contract or any aspect related to 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           18 
 

the anticipated work under this Contract raises an actual or potential conflict of interest (as 
described in 2 C.F.R. Part 200).  The Supplier must explain the actual or potential conflict in 
writing in sufficient detail so that the U.S. Office of General Services, Sourcewell, and 
Participating Entity are able to assess the actual or potential conflict; and provide any additional 
information as necessary or requested.  
 
R. U.S. EXECUTIVE ORDER 13224. The Supplier, and its subcontractors, must comply with U.S. 
Executive Order 13224 and U.S. Laws that prohibit transactions with and provision of resources 
and support to individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. 
 
S. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR 
EQUIPMENT. To the extent applicable, Supplier certifies that during the term of this Contract it 
will comply with applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.216. 
 
T. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Supplier certifies 
that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 
200.322. 
 

22. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Supplier may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Supplier’s 
Proposal.  Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or 
service obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 

Sourcewell                   The Heil Co. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz John Muina 

Title: Chief Procurement Officer Title: Corporate Officer 
 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
 
 
Approved:  
 
 

 



110223-THC 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           19 
 

 
By: __________________________  

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 
 

 



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Table 14: Warranty 
 

Describe in detail your manufacturer warranty program, including conditions and requirements to qualify, claims procedure, 
and overall structure. You may upload representative samples of your warranty materials (if applicable) in the document 
upload section of your response in addition to responding to the questions below. 

 
Line 
Item Question Response *  

73 Do your warranties cover all products, parts, and 
labor? 

The initial 1-year standard warranty coverage includes parts and labor for 12 
months or 2000 hours. In addition to the 1-year standard warranty, there are 
also various extended warranty packages that may be purchased depending 
on the needs of the individual member. 

 
* 

74 Do your warranties impose usage restrictions or 
other limitations that adversely affect coverage? 

Heil® Certified OEM Parts are the most reliable replacement parts for Heil® 
refuse trucks. These parts are made following the exact specifications and 
production processes on the same assembly lines as the parts originally 
installed on the vehicles. This means they fit perfectly every time. Heil® uses 
only the highest-quality materials for parts that last, therefore, OEM parts 
must be used to continue warranty coverage. Heil does not assume any 
liability for warranty considerations due to any improper use, operation 
beyond rated equipment/component capacity, substitution of parts that are not 
Heil-approved, or any alteration or repair by others in such a manner that 
affects the product operation or integrity. 

 
 
 

 
* 

75 Do your warranties cover the expense of 
technicians' travel time and mileage to perform 
warranty repairs? 

Although we do not cover the expense of travel time and mileage for 
warranty repairs, the Heil Warranty Request Order Form (referred to as the 
WRO Form) is used to request approval for policy adjustment of warranty 
coverage requesting unusual or non-standard repair(s) and exceptions such 
as these may be considered. 

 
 
* 

76 Are there any geographic regions of the United 
States or Canada (as applicable) for which you 
cannot provide a certified technician to perform 
warranty repairs? How will Sourcewell 
participating entities in these regions be provided 
service for warranty repair? 

Heil is fully prepared and capable of servicing all Sourcewell member 
geographic areas and market segments under this contract in the United 
States and Canada. The first level of service would be through the 
Authorized Heil Dealer network, and if required, the Field Service team 
within our Heil Technical Support Group. 

 

 
* 

77 Will you cover warranty service for items made by 
other manufacturers that are part of your proposal, 
or are these warranties issues typically passed on 
to the original equipment manufacturer? 

Yes. Heil pays warrantable claims for items and parts that are included in 
this proposal and then we work internally with our suppliers toward recovery 
where applicable. Some parts, such as some cylinders, may come with a 
manufacturer's warranty that is separate from the Heil warranty and those 
may require involvement with the OEM that manufactured the part. These are 
generally handled through the Heil Dealer as well. 

 

 
* 

78 What are your proposed exchange and return 
programs and policies? 

OEM parts purchased from the Heil Dealer through Parts Central can 
sometimes be considered for return or exchange depending on certain 
criteria, such as being a current production part, and are evaluated on a 
case-by-case basis. Cylinders, when applicable, ship back to cylinder OEM 
for evaluation. Non-cylinder claims may require return to Heil and is 
determined through the warranty and repair process. 

 

 
* 

79 Describe any service contract options for the 
items included in your proposal. 

Each dealer in our extensive network establishes the pricing for and 
manages service contracts on a localized basis for our customers based on 
their individual needs. 

 
* 

 
Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications Form 
 
Only those Proposer Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications that have bene accepted by Sourcewell have been 
incorporated into the contract text.  

 
Documents 

 
Ensure your submission document(s) conforms to the following: 

1. Documents in PDF format are preferred. Documents in Word, Excel, or compatible formats may also be provided. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co. 



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



Bid Number: RFP 110223 Vendor Name: The Heil Co.



 

Heil Environmental #110223-THC 

 
Pricing for contract #110223-THC offers Sourcewell participating agencies the following discounts: 

 

• A discount of 4% off MSRP as well as any associated surcharges for all products and services which would 
represent the ceiling price a member would pay to a Heil dealer. The exception to this would be the 
chassis.  

• This discount does not apply to equipment rentals through those various entities as rental pricing has 
already taken this discount. 

 



Purchase Agreement

Date

7/2/2025

Estimate #

26646

Name / Address

City of Muskogee
PO Box 1927
Muskogee, OK 74402

Ship To

City of Muskogee
229 W. Okmulgee
Muskogee, OK 74401

River City Hydraulics, Inc.

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

Rep

CK

Unit Number Serial Number VIN

Phone:  (501) 835-5230
Fax:  (501) 834-1233

All documents pertaining to and required for financing/loan must be submitted to lienholder
before delivery of unit.  All payments are required within five business days of delivery.

PRICE IS VALID FOR 5 BUSINESS DAYS

Print

Date ___________

P.O. Box 6033
Sherwood, AR  72124

Any applicable material surcharges or tariffs imposed on this order prior to delivery will be
passed on to the buyer.  This will increase the final price at time of delivery.

Initial: ____

Item Description Qty U/M Rate Total

HEIL POWERT... POWERTRAK 1000 REAR LOADER 20 YARD
MOUNTED ON FREIGHTLINER M2-106 PLUS

2 ea 227,662.21 455,324.42T

SOURCEWELL... SOURCEWELL DISCOUNT 2 -6,000.00 -12,000.00T
Options FULL FACTORY MOUNT 0.00 0.00T

CLUTCH SHIFT PTO
OPERATE AT IDLE ( OAI ) FRONT MOUNT
VANE PUMP ( FAST CYCLE PUMP 15-19 SEC
CYCLE TIME )
DUAL HOPPER WORK LIGHT KIT - TWO
LIGHTS - SWITCH IN CAB
BODY SIDE BACKING ASSIST LIGHTS -
REVERSE ACTIVATED
MULTI - FUNCTION LED STROBE / TURN
LAMPS - INCLUDES LED LIGHT PACKAGE
FOR ENTIRE UNIT
ROLL BAR ADJUSTABLE WITH CONTROL KIT
LIP AND LATCH KIT - TO SUIT APPLICATION
WITH CART TIPPER (S)
ONE BAYNE TIPPER TO BE MOUNTED IN
THE CENTER OF THE REAR OF THE HOPPER.
AN ADDITIONAL TIPPER WILL BE SUPPLIED
FOR REPLACEMENT.
BASE 3RD EYE SINGLE CAMERA SYSTEM
WITH 7" STD. MONITOR AND SINGLE
CAMERA MOUNTED ON TAILGATE

Page 1



Purchase Agreement

Date

7/2/2025

Estimate #

26646

Name / Address

City of Muskogee
PO Box 1927
Muskogee, OK 74402

Ship To

City of Muskogee
229 W. Okmulgee
Muskogee, OK 74401

River City Hydraulics, Inc.

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

Rep

CK

Unit Number Serial Number VIN

Phone:  (501) 835-5230
Fax:  (501) 834-1233

All documents pertaining to and required for financing/loan must be submitted to lienholder
before delivery of unit.  All payments are required within five business days of delivery.

PRICE IS VALID FOR 5 BUSINESS DAYS

Print

Date ___________

P.O. Box 6033
Sherwood, AR  72124

Any applicable material surcharges or tariffs imposed on this order prior to delivery will be
passed on to the buyer.  This will increase the final price at time of delivery.

Initial: ____

Item Description Qty U/M Rate Total

20LB. FIRE EXTINGUISHER WITH BRACKET
BROOM AND SHOVEL RACK - MOUNTED ON
TAILGATE
MUD FLAPS - ANTI - SAIL / ANTI - SPLASH -
MOUNTED AHEAD OF REAR TIRES
MUD FLAPS - ANTI - SAIL / ANTI - SPLASH -
TAILGATE MOUNTED BEHIND REAR TIRES

FREIGHT - Ne... FREIGHT INCLUDED 0.00 0.00T
FREE OPERATOR AND MECHANIC TRAINING
COMPLETION DATE OF 60 DAYS ONCE
ORDER IS PLACED
HEIL SOURCEWELL NUMBER 110223-THC
CITY OF MUSKOGEE SOURCEWELL NUMBER
17934

Page 2

Signature _____________________________________

_____________________________________ Total $443,324.42

Subtotal $443,324.42

Sales Tax  (0.0%) $0.00


	Agenda
	_1._16151
	       ATT_06092025 finmin
	_2.__Consider approval of all City department claims for May 31, 2025 through July 4, 2025
	       ATT_Purchasing Claims 7_14_2025
	_3.__Consider approval of Resolution 3035 declaring surplus of City items
	       ATT_Resolution 3035 Surplus
	RESOLUTION NO. 3035

	_4.__Crawford Engagement Letter (FY25 Audit)
	       ATT_Crawford FY25 Engagement Letter
	_5.__Final Pay Langston Park Splash Pad Project No. 2023029
	       ATT_Final Pay App
	G702
	G703

	_6.__Lowest and Best Bid Hatbox VA Parking Lot Improvements Project No. 2025009
	       ATT_Hatbox Bid Tab
	_7.__Lowest and Best Bid ARPA Water Treatment Plant Improvements, Project No. 2025010
	       ATT_Bid Tab
	       ATT_Engineers Recommendation
	_8.__Kubota Mx5400HST 4WD tractor with accessories
	       ATT_quote
	       ATT_contract
	_9.__Lowest and Best Bid Keetowah Lift Station No. 16, Project No. 2025003
	       ATT_Bid Tab
	       ATT_Engineer's Recommendation Letter
	_10.__Kubota Mini Ex KX057-5R3AP with Saw and Hammer
	       ATT_quote
	       ATT_Sourewell Contract
	_11.__2026 PowerTrak 1000 Rear Loader 20 yard solid waste trucks
	       ATT_Sourewell Contract
	       ATT_Sourewell Pricing
	       ATT_quote

